
ABABABAB    
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2012 
7.00 PM 
 

Forli Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 

 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 September 2012 
 

1 - 6 

 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting Held on 24 September 2012 
 

 

4. Risk Management Strategy, Business Continuity Strategy and Update 
on Risk Management: Strategic Risks 
 

7 - 28 

5. RIPA: Progress Report to 30 September 2012 and an update on RIPA 
policy changes 
 

29 - 30 

6. Member Code of Conduct 
 

31 - 54 

7. Treasury Management: Update 
 

55 - 64 

8. Internal Audit: Mid Year Progress Report 
 

65 - 90 

9. Use of Consultants 
 

91 - 96 

10. Feedback Report 
 

97 - 98 

THE CHAIRMAN WILL ASSUME THAT MEMBERS HAVE READ THEIR PAPERS PRIOR 

TO THE MEETING TO AVOID UNNECESSARY INTRODUCTIONS TO REPORTS. IF ANY 

QUESTIONS ARE APPARENT FROM THE REPORTS THEY SHOULD BE PASSED TO 

THE REPORT AUTHOR PRIOR TO THE MEETING 

Public Document Pack



11. Work Programme 2012 / 2013 
 

99 - 102 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Karen S Dunleavy on 01733 452233 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Lamb (Chairman), C Harper (Vice Chairman), N Arculus, S Lane, M Fletcher, 
J Knowles, Y Maqbool and N Sandford 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: P Kreling, E Murphy and A Miners 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Karen S Dunleavy on telephone 
01733 452233 or by email – karen.dunleavy@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



���
�

��������	
�����������	
�����������	��������
�����������	��������������	�	���	��������������������

�
��������� 	
�����
���������	���������������������	������������������������� �
� � ��
�������������

��

� � �
 !!������� �
������������"
��������
���#$����%��&����
��'�����(��)��
������
� � '��%��	���������	��!�*������������
��
� � '��%�������
����������
!�	
��
�����'��%����
� � +���'��%���
���	
������������(���

� ������'�&�����%,��-
%�������� !!����
�

���
����
�������������"�����)�.����#$�����������
����	�

� "�����&����,��#$�����������
����	�
�

���
���������������	
�����
��'���
��/�	�������������!
��)��
������
� � � �

��� ������� !�"�#��$! %& �
�
��
�
(���!
�������������������%���!�
��	
�����
���0������������'���!
��1�
�

��� � &�'#'(��%!��"��%( # !(�'%)��*����%��� &�'#'(��%!��
�
2�����������
���������
���
!���������
�������(���������
��1���
�

+�� ��%,( !��"�(* ��  (�%��* �)��%��-�.,% ������
�
2����������
!����������(������
��34�"����3563�����������
%���������������������������
���
��1�
� �

��� �,)�(��"��('( / %(��"��&&�,%(!�'%)�� ��#(�(���*�! ��*'#� )���(*���0 #%'%& �
�

2���	
�����������%��������
���!�
������#$����%��&����
��
!�'�����(��)��
������������
�������� ���� !��������������
!����
����� !
�� ����,����������76�������3563����� �����������
���
��� �
� ��
��� ����(��� ���� -
%�������� !
��
��(� ����� ������,� �,� #$������� ����1� � 2���
	
��������������
���%�����������������
���
!����������(�����!
�����������
����������
����#$�����������
������
���������������������������,�����������
���	

��������	�1�
� �
2��� 	
������� ���� �!
����� �,� ���� ��	� �����������%�� ����� ���� ���!�� ���
����� ����
����
���(��
��������
���������������� ����%��� !�
��������
�
�(��	�,�	
����� ��		��
�����
!���%��,��(����������1������������������
���%����
!������
���
!��$����������������
������%
�%������������!,�(��$����%����.�1���
�
�����	
����������������������
��
�

61� )���%�� ���� ����
%�� ���� 8)��
��� �
� ��
��� ����(��� ���� (
%�������� �*'�395��
3566:63�����;�!�
������������
���	

��������	�������	
����<���$�����������
��=�

31� 2
���.����,���������,����
�������
������(���
!��������
��=�����
71� )���%����������
%�������������'���������
!����
�����3566:631�

�

Public Document Pack

1



��,��
����������������
����
���
�������(�������(
%�����������������
�

•� #$����%��������,=�

•� 2�������
���
!��������
���������,��(�!������������������������
�����������
�����
������
������<��������
�=�

•� '(�!�����������������
����(��������=�

•� '(�!�������.��>�����!���
��
!��(�!�������.������!���������������������������
��������
����.�������������
!������
��=�

•� ���
�����/�����
��������(���������
���������	������
���
�������������������,�
���������������
������������=��

•� ���
����(�*������>�������
�������
!��
�� ���
����(�!
�����������!���
!�������'
����	���=�
�� ������
��
!���
����,���������������������=�����
�� �
��������
��,��
��(�(�������������'�=�

•� ������������������(�!���
���������?���������
!������������������
�����?������
���������������
%�������(��������
���(���%���
!�@345.=�

•� '(�!��������
����(���������������
����=�

•� "��(������� ���� ���
����(� ��������� /� ������ ����� �
� �������(��� �,�
����������
���	

��������	���
���,�?��(�������
�����
����(����������������,�
����	
����=�

•� ���
����(� *������ /� ���� ������������ �� 3566:63� 	
��� 
!� �������� /� ������ ����
����(��� ���� ����� �
�������� �,� ��	�� �����(�� �������� 	���
�� )�����
��
	
��������������$�����.�(���/��
�������������(��(������
�����	
������=�

•� ����(�����������������
��������=�

•� )�������������=�

•� �����*�����������=��

•� )�.�
!�!�����/��
�������������(��(������
�����	
������=�����

•� '���������
!����
�����3566:631�
�
	
���������������
������
������
�����������!
��
����
�

•� ������������.��� !!�����!
����%��,��
��������%�����
��=�

•� �������� ����� ��%���� ����� ������ �������
���� ����������� ����(������ �����
����
�����,��������������
��,�!
����,�����(������
%������
!��
���
��1���	�����
�������.���������
�.��������
���
�������.������������������
����������
����������
�
�������
��
!������������=��

•� ��	� ���� �
�� ��%����� 	������ &���
��� ��(����(� !����(� ���
���
�� �
������
�!!����,� ��������
%��� @655�� �� 3566>3563�� ��� ���� ������� �$����������
���� ���
��������������3563:67�!�������,�������������!
����
����������������������������
����������!
��3563:3567=��

•� �������� ����� ��%���� ����� ��	� �
���� ���
��� �
� ���� �������� !� ������ �����
����?�������������������
!���
�����
%���@345.����������'���������
!����
����=���

•� ���������������%�������������
�(��������!������������!�������
����������#$�������
��������
��������!(������
�����
���������
��������������������������
�����!���������
�		� ������ ��� �������� 
��,� !
�� ���� ��
����� ���� ��� �
�� ����%�� ����!�� !�
�� ����
!����(����������
��
���
��
��������������������������
%��������������������=�

•� �������� ����� �!
����� ����� ���� ����� 	
����
�� �� �
���� ����� �������� ����
���(��
�����
��������
�����
�� �
������ �
� ����,�
��� �������!���� 3563:671� �2���
����� 	
����
�� ���� �
������ �
� 
%������ ������
�,� !����
���� ���� �
���� ���
�(�!�����,��������=�

•� ���������������%���������������	������!�������������������������	
����
���
������!��=���

•� �������� ����� ��%���� ����� ���� ����
�� ������ �
������
�� !
�� ������������ ����
����������
�������(��
!���������
�=�

•� 0
��
��(� ����!���
�� �
�(��� �,� ��������� ���� #$����%�� &����
�� '�����(��
)��
��������%�������������
����������������(
��������������
�����
��,���%�������

2



���� ���������,� ��,����� ���� ���� ��� �� �
���� ��%��� ���� ����� ����������� 
!� �����

����=���

•� 0
��
��(� ����!���
�� �
�(��� �,��������� 
%��� ���� ����� ��
����� !
�� ����
����
��
��%����!
����
?�����
%���655�������#$����%��&����
��
!�'�����(��)��
��������%����
����� ����� 	
����� ����
%��� ���� ���(���� ���,� ���
� ����
%�� ���� ���(��� �
��,�
!�����
�.1� 2��� ����
�� ��.�(� 
�� ���� ���
���
�� 
!� �$��������� �
���� ����� ���
�������
��
�	�����1������������������
���%��������������������
���(����������
�
������
�� �
������� �����	
������
���� �����%����,������������� �������(����
��,�
!�����
�.1���

�
2���	
��������������
���.����
��
��������(����������	���((������������������
�����
!�������
������������
��������
�

1�	
������%��3565:66�!�������
����
!�@65��������������

•� &���������� )����������� 	
��� /� ���� ����� ����� �
� ���%�� ��� A�$���(� ����
%����<� ������ ���������� ��
����,� ���� %�����1� � *�� ���� ���� ������ �
��� 
!�
��������(� ������(� ���%��� �
������� 
!� ���� ������ ��� ���� ����� 
!� %�����
��
����������������@6B��
!�!�������
���� ������3566:63���%�����
���@65����
3565:66�=�����

1����
����(��
�����/���
����,������������#��������'�����������������(����
��������

•� �����������������,��������������
�����
�����(��
§� 2����������������=�
§� ��,� �
���� ������������ �
� ���(�(� ���� ������ �
� ���� �
���
�� ����

�
���
�� ��������,� !
�� �� �
� ��� �������� 
!� 
������(� �� �����������
���������,�����(�����=�����

§� 2����������������
!������
����
!���������(��������
%�(���������
��������
��(���������
��������������
�����1�

�
� ����	��������1�

�
2���	
��������(�������������
%�������!
��
��(��
�

61� 2��� 8)��
��� �
� ��
��� ����(��� ���� (
%�������� �*'�395�� 3566:63� ����;� !�
��
����������
���	

��������	�������	
����<���$�����������
��=�

31� 2
���.����,���������,����
�������
������(���
!��������
��=�����
71� 2����������'���������
!����
�����3566:631�

�
2��� 	
������� ���
� �
���� ���� �(����� ���� ��	� ��((������ ����������� �
� ���� !����
'���������
!����
������
�

1�	
������%��3565:66�!�������
����
!�@65��������������

•� &���������� )����������� 	
��� /� ���� ����� ����� �
� ���%�� ��� A�$���(� ����
%����<� ������ ���������� ��
����,� ���� %�����1� � *�� ���� ���� ������ �
��� 
!�
� ��������(� ������(� ���%��� �
������� 
!� ���� ������ ��� ���� ����� 
!�
%�����
������������������@6B��
!�!�������
���� ������3566:63���%�����
��
� �@65����3565:66�=�����

1����
����(��
�����/���
����,������������#��������'�����������������(����
��������

•� �����������������,��������������
�����
�����(��
§� 2����������������=�
§� ��,� �
���� ������������ �
� ���(�(� ���� ������ �
� ���� �
���
�� ����

�
���
�� ��������,� !
�� �� �
� ��� �������� 
!� 
������(� �� �����������
���������,�����(�����=�����

§� 2����������������
!������
����
!���������(��������
%�(���������
��������
��(���������
��������������
�����1�

�
2���	
����������
��(���������!
��
��(����
�������
���

�

3



���	��������	�1�
�
*�������(�������������������
!���	<���$�����������������!
��3563:67����	��
���������������

!!����� ���� ���������	
������� ��� ����
������ ��
��� 
!��
�.� �
� ��%��� ���� (
%��������
�����(��������������������
����������
!��������
���
��
!��$������������������	
����<��
���(����
��,�!�����
�.1�
�

-����� �,�'(��%��"��%0 !(��'(�#2���3 #!��&(�4����51��%%,'��� ��#(�����6�����
�
2���	
�����������%��������
���
����������
!�)*����
�����
%�������,����3566�/�3563�����
���� ���
�� ����(� 75� "���� 35631� � �������� ����� ���
� �!
����� 
!� ���� ������� ������
��
�
��������
%���������
�
�(��	�,�	
����<������
!�)*��������������
���������,�&
��
��
	
����������������'��%��������	
����
������������ !!���
!�'��%��������	
����
���1���
�
&���(��
�������
��
!��������
�������������	
�������������.����
��
�

•� )���%����
�������������
�����������
���
����������
!�)*���!
���������������%���
!�
3566��
�3563�����!
�������������
������
�"����35631�

�
2���!
��
��(�.�,��
����������������
������������
�

•� 2���� ��������(� 
!� ���� ����� 
!� ���
�
��� ������
����� '������ 2����(� ���� 2�$�
������(���������"��,�3566�����"�����,�3563=�

•� 0�,�����(�
!!������3566�/�3563=��

•� �������
��� !
�� ������� �
� �
�������
��� ����� �������� ����� 3566� �
� 76� ������
3563�����!�
�������3563�/�"����3563=�

•� )*���2

����=�

•� )*��������(=�����

•� ��
����
��
!�0����
�������/����������
��,�(����������������
���������������������
��$�������	
������1�

�
	
���������������
������
������
�����������!
��
����
�

•� 0
��
��(� ����!���
�� �
�(��� 
%��� ���� ������ ��
���� 
!� ������
��� �
��������
���� ���� �
��� ������
��� �%
�%���� ���� 	
������������(��� ��%������������
��������������������
�������(��(�����������		�������������������������������

!� �
��� �%���(��
��1� � �������� ����� ���
� �!
����� ����� �� ���!�(� �
��� ����
���%
���,�������
��������������������������������������,����
!����%��������
���������������
�������=����

•� ���������������%�����������������
���
!��������
����
�	
������������
��!
���

!� ��������
������
%����
�����
��� ��������� ��.������������(�)*������� ����� ��
�
������� ���� ����
�����,� 
!� ���� �������%���		������������� �
� ���
��� 
�� ����
�
��
��(��������,��
�����!,��
��������������������(�����!�,�����(�
!!�����=�

•� 0
��
��(�����!���
���
�(����,��������������	
������������(�����%���������
�		�����
���(�
!!�����!
���
%�������%�����������(�)*����������������

§� 2���	��!�#$����%�=�
§� �����
!� �����
��=�
§� �����
!�-
%�������=��
§� '�����(��)�(����
�,�'��%��������(��=�����
§� 2���	
������������(���

•� 0
��
��(� ����!���
�� �
�(���� �������� ����� �!
����� ����� 	������ ��������
������
��������,������������(����(���������)*�������
����
�=�����

•� �������� ����� ��%���� ����� ������� ����� ���� ����� ���
������ !
�� )*���� �����
�
���� ���.� ����
����
�� !�
�� ���� ��(������<�� �
����� !
�� ���� ����
����1� � 2���
�����������(������ �������� �
�������� ����������	
��������� ��.�������
������
����!������
��
%������������
!�)*���!
���
%����
�����
��1��

4



�
����	��������1�
�
2���	
��������
�

•� )���%���� �
�������� ���� ���
����� ���� ���
��� 
�� ���� ���� 
!� )*��� !
�� ���� �������
��%���
!�3566��
�3563�����!
�������������
������
�"����35631�

�
*�������(��������������	
������������(����
�����
�

•� ��
%��� �������� �$������
��� ����� ���� ���
��� �
� 	
�������� 
%��� ���� �!!������
�,����
!�)*����%���(��
�������=�����

•� )������� �� ���!�(� �
��� !�
��  �����
��� ��(����(� ���� �������� �
��
��(�
�������,� ���
��� ���� 	�,� �
� ����!,� �
������� ����� ��������(� ���� !�,� ����(�

!!�����1�

�
7�� �#��# !!�6���)'( �� ��#(�

�
2���	
�����������%��������
���!�
������	��!�*������������
����(����(��������
�������(�
!�
���������%
��������(�
!������	
���������������
���
���
!���
������
��1�

�
2���!
��
��(�.�,��
����������������
������������
��

•� ��,� ������ 
!� �
�>�
�������� !
�� ���� *�������� ����� ��
(����� ���
���� �
���� ���
���
����� �
��������1� 2��� ��$�� ��
(����� ���
��� ���� ���� ��� ����� 	
������� 
�� 4�
C
%������3563=�����

•� 2�����$����
(��������
���
����
(�����
�����

�������������

���
���
�����������!
��
��������
!��������������
����������
������
������	
���������C
%������35631�

�
	
���������������
������
������
�����������!
��
����

�

•� 0
��
��(� ����!���
�� �
�(��� �,��������� ����	��!� *������������
�� �
�!����� �����
��������������!���!
�����

��������������
!�������������������������������1��

�
����	��������1�
�
2���	
��������
����������
(�����:�D������)��
��1�

�
8����#9��#��#'// ������6����+�

�
2��� 	��!� *�������� ����
�� ��������� ���� ������� %���
�� 
!� ���� E
�.� ��
(������ !
�� ����
�������� ,���� 3563:3567� !
�� �
�������
�� ���� ����
%��1� � 2��� ��������� ���
��� ��
%����
�������
!�������
�
����E
�.���
(������!
��������������F����3563:3567��
(������������,�
�����(�����������!��1�
� �
	
���������������
������
������
�����������!
��
����
�
2������������
���
!��
�������
������������������(���������
��4�C
%������35631��
�
����	��������1�
�
2���	
��������
������������
%�������3563:3567�E
�.���
(�����1���
� ��
�

���������������� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � G155���/�G145�����������������������������

� � � � 	������� �

5



This page is intentionally left blank

6



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
 

5 NOVEMBER 2012  PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Seaton for Resources 

Contact Officer(s): Kevin Dawson, Group Manager - Construction, Compliance 
& Resilience 

Tel. 453464 

   

 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM :  Kevin Dawson, Group Manager – Construction, 
Compliance & Resilience 

Deadline date : N/A 

The Cabinet Member is recommended to: 
 

1. Consider the revised risk management and business continuity strategies; and 
2. Approve the delivery of a relevant training and awareness programme to all Members, which 

would include both induction and ongoing training 
 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 

1.1 This report is submitted to the Audit Committee as a routine planned report on risk 
management. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Committee on the revised 
Council’s Risk Management Strategy and Business Continuity Policy under its terms of 
reference 2.2.14 effective development and operation of risk management 

 

3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

4.    RISK MANAGEMENT REVIEW 

 

4.1 The Audit Committee received and agreed the previous Risk Management and Business 
Continuity Policy on September 2010 and accepted their role within it, of: “monitoring and 
supporting the Council’s risk management arrangements”.  

 
4.2 The Corporate Strategic Risk Register is in the process of being reviewed, in conjunction 

with Directors and Strategic Improvement. A full update on current strategic risks should be 
available in December following a workshop involving the whole of CMT which is currently 
programmed for early November 2012.  

 
4.3 The strategy has been reviewed and updated to reflect progress and practical changes and 

to meet the recommendations contained in a report from Internal Audit dated 23 May 2012. 
Key changes are as follows:  

 

7



4.4 Separate policies have now been produced for both business continuity and risk 
management. 

 
4.5 Revised self-assessment scores and new target scores have been introduced and scoring 

of both Strategic and Project risks have been re-aligned to have the same evaluation 
criteria. This enables comparison of risks and ensures more meaningful reporting 

 
4.6 Operational risk assessment process has assisted the review and update of the business 

continuity plans. It is also providing a useful profile of areas of high risk, which can be 
escalated to the strategic registers where necessary.  

 
4.7 Key Ongoing issues for 2012/13:  
 

• Completion of operational risk profile; 

• Revision of Service and Corporate BC plans;  

• Review of Strategic (corporate) risk register; 

• Coordination of Strategic and Departmental risk registers; 

• Regular risk “conversations” within and between services at all levels; 

• Updates on Insite, web and E-Learning; and  

• Strategic issues e.g. introducing and embedding RM/BCM into procurement 
processes, induction briefings and business plans. 

 
5 ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 

5.1 Audit Committee note and comment on the revised strategy 
 
6 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

6.1 Risk management is a key component of the Council’s Corporate Governance Framework 
 which will take time to review and embed effectively.    
 

7 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

7.1 None 
 
8 IMPLICATIONS 

 

8.1 The identification of risks and the proper management of those risks will ensure that: 
 

• The Council’s environmental policies and ambitions can be met; the Council is able 
to mitigate against potential financial losses, litigation claims and reputational 
damage; the Council is able to effectively deliver the strategic priorities.  

 
9  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
  

9.1 Peterborough City Council Risk Management and Business Continuity Policy 2011 - 2012 
 
10 APPENDICES 

 

• Appendix 1 – Risk Management Policy 

• Appendix 2 – Business Continuity Policy 

8



                                                                                                      

 

 

 

 

 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
To provide clear evidence of the effective operation of a Risk Management Policy 
and the organisation’s role in implementing the process. 
 

    Appendix 1 

9



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 2 

 

Document Control 
 

Title: Peterborough City Council Risk Management Policy 

Synopsis: This document outlines the effective operation of a Risk 
Management  Policy and the organisation’s implementation of the 
process. 

Status: FIRST DRAFT  

Date: October 2012 

Document 
Owner(s): 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) 

Author(s): Kevin Dawson 

Change Control: Version 
ID 

Date of 
Issue 

Change 
Description 

Author 

 0.1  Oct 2012  Kevin Dawson 

 0.2 19 Oct 2012 Consultation with Internal 
Audit 

Kevin Dawson 

     

 

Version ID Date of 
Submission 

Submitted to Approval and Sign Off 

1.0 

 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 3 

 
This document sets out the risk management policy for Peterborough City Council. 
 
Risk Management Vision 
 
Peterborough City Council is committed to effective risk management arrangements as a means 
of supporting the achievement of the Council's strategic objectives.   
 
The risk management vision is to consolidate and improve our risk management arrangements 
to bring the following benefits: 

• Better communication vertically about key issues, early and often, and horizontally, 
learning lessons and reducing duplication of effort 

• Consensus about the main risks in different parts of the organisation 

• Confidence that the key risks are recognised and are being managed, both by the 
Council and its partners. 

• Clarity and focus: directing resources to risks that matter away from risks that don’t, and 
fewer surprises. 

• Taking more risks and exploiting opportunities, because they are understood and 
managed.  

 
Risk Management Principles 
 
The Council's approach to risk management is built on the following principles: 
 

• The political leadership and senior management of the Council are committed to 
effective risk management 

• Risk management operates within a culture of transparency and openness; we 
encourage risks to be raised and escalated as appropriate 

• Risk management arrangements are dynamic, flexible and responsive to developments 

• The process of risk management is simply a means to ensure appropriate action to take 
opportunities and mitigate risks 

• The risk management process must be consistent, clear and straightforward and result in 
timely information that helps informed decision making 

• Risk management is integrated with other key business processes such as planning, 
decision making, performance management and programme management 

• Risk management has links to many other management disciplines and we encourage 
sharing of information and joint working as necessary 

• The risk management approach is also beneficial in managing any risks associated with 
the delivery of opportunities. 

 

11



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 4 

 
Risk Management Framework 
 
The Council's Risk Management Framework is described below and shown in the diagram in 
Appendix A (Risk Management Process).  The Process sets out the overall arrangements for 
the operation of risk management at Peterborough; it therefore encapsulates the risk strategy of 
the organisation.  An action plan will be put in place to ensure that this strategy is delivered, and 
this will be monitored by Audit Committee. 
 
The Council is working towards greater synergy between Risk Management and Planning and 
Performance Management arrangements, as shown in Appendix B  
 
The internal audit team provides assurance on the adequacy of Risk Management 
arrangements to the Audit and Accounts Committee, as shown in Appendix C (attachment 
required). 
 
The table below sets out the framework and the expectations of its key elements: 
 

Organisational Risk Management Arrangements 

Element Peterborough's expectation 

Cabinet • Considers risk in its planning decisions; 

• Sets the overall risk appetite for the organisation; 

• Monitors the performance of management in 
mitigating strategic risks; 

• Makes decisions with due regard to risk 
considerations. 

 

Lead Member for 
Risk Management 

• Champions the operation of effective risk 
management operations at Council. 

Scrutiny • Holds Members and Officers to account for 
effectiveness of risk management in decision 
making and achievement of objectives 

Corporate 
Management Team 
(CMT) 

• Owns and leads the corporate risk management 
process; 

• Reviews and challenges the Corporate Risk 
Register on a quarterly basis; 

• Receives urgent risk reports as necessary 

• Individually, arranges for quarterly review of 
Directorate level risk registers. 

 

Lead Officer for Risk 
Management 

• Acts as a champion for risk management within the 
organisation 

• Chairs Corporate Group? Audit Committee? 
 

Members of 
Corporate 
Management Team 

• Review and challenge their respective risk registers 
on a quarterly basis and more often if appropriate.  

 

Risk Owners • Accountable for determining and implementing the 
action required to manage risks and opportunities; 

• Review and report on effectiveness of actions on a 
quarterly basis. 

 

12



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 5 

Organisational Risk Management Arrangements 

Element Peterborough's expectation 

Project and 
Programme 
Sponsors, 
Procurement leads. 
(Business 
Transformation) 

• Ensure risk registers are used to record and 
manage risk at programme and project level; 

• Ensure risks are escalated into the corporate risk 
management process as necessary 

Managers • Are alert to risks arising from business as usual 
and manage and escalate these as necessary. 

 
 

Risk Management support, guidance, challenge, policy and strategy,  
co-ordination 

Element Peterborough's expectation 

Business 
Transformation 

• Implements the overall risk management strategy 
and approach, in consultation with key 
stakeholders; 

• Works to increase awareness of the importance of 
risk management; 

• Supports the risk escalation and reporting process, 
in particular the Corporate Risk Register; 

• Gathers risk intelligence from the Risk Implications 
paragraphs in Cabinet reports 

• Maintains an oversight of risk issues across the 
organisation, reviewing, challenging and identifying 
trends and advising CMT accordingly. 

 

Audit Committee • Oversees the implementation of the organisation’s 
risk management strategy; 

• Acts as a communication and challenge 
mechanism for risk issues across the organisation, 
reviewing, challenging and identifying trends and 
advising Executive / Corporate Directorate 
Management Teams accordingly; 

• Review and challenge Service and Corporate 
Directorate risk registers on a rotational basis. 

 

Risk Champions 
 

• Co-ordinate and implement the Service / Corporate 
Directorate risk management strategy in line with 
the overall organisational approach; 

• Work to increase awareness of the importance of 
risk management across their area; 

• Support the risk escalation and reporting process, 
in particular, maintain and update the Service and 
Corporate Directorate Risk Registers; 

• Monitor and report on any necessary action to 
implement risk control measures.  

• Challenge and support managers to ensure the 
effectiveness of the risk management process in 
their area. 

 

13



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Assurance, oversight, policy & strategy approval 

Element Peterborough's expectation 

Audit Committee • Oversee the risk management arrangements in 
place within the organisation 

• Monitor the effectiveness of risk management 
processes and culture; 

• Holds managers to account for risk mitigation work; 
 

Internal Audit • Uses intelligence on risk to inform the audit 
planning approach; 

• Gives assurance on the effective management of 
risk to senior managers, the Audit and Accounts 
Committee and other bodies as necessary. 

• Examination of corporate risk registers as part of 
the planning during the audit process 

 

14



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 7 

 
 
 
The Risk Management Process  

Risk identification, assessment and recording 

At whichever level it is operated, the standard risk management process involves four key 
stages: 

• Identify key risks: use the standard risk register to record these; use the risk 
category prompts/service plans to assist the identification of risk; 

• Analyse the risk to assess the likelihood of it occurring and the impact should it 
occur using the standard corporate impact and likelihood criteria (if appropriate 
these can be modified in discussion with the Business Transformation Team); use 
the standard risk register to record this; 

• Take action to control the risk; contingency plan for risk exposure/occurrence; 
record details in the standard risk register.   

• Review and report upon progress on a quarterly basis. 

Risks can be identified, assessed and included on the appropriate risk register at any 
time in the year.   

Risk registers 

 
The Council adopts a consistent approach to risk registers: Council adopts a consistent ah to 
risk registers:  

• They are owned and maintained at the following levels: 
 

o At CMT and Executive Directorate level (each Corporate Managerial Team 
member therefore having a risk register)  

o For projects and programmes, in line with guidance provided by the Business 
Transformation Team  

o For significant value contracts above European Union thresholds 
o For any other area identified as necessary as approved by Cabinet, for example, 

for a financial recovery plan. 
 

• They are held on a universal spreadsheet template using the corporate risk scoring 
approach. 

 

Escalation of risks 

 
Where it is considered that a risk cannot be effectively mitigated by a risk owner it will be 
important to escalate this up the risk hierarchy as shown in Appendix A (Risk Management 
Process). 
 

Where it is considered that a risk cannot be effectively mitigated by a risk owner it will be 
important to escalate this up the risk hierarchy as shown in Appendix A.  

15



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 8 

 
 

 

Risk appetite 

The risk appetite is the level of likelihood/impact, whether it is stated financially or otherwise, 
above which it is judged that a risk requires direct and urgent management action.  To 
determine the risk appetite consider: 

• capacity to manage the risk should it occur; 

• potential impacts upon service delivery and financial resources; 

• capacity to take action to reduce / remove the risk; 

• the effect that managing one risk may have on another. 

 

The corporate risk appetite applies to Corporate Management Team level risks and to Strategic 
Risks.  The corporate risk appetite is set by CMT.  

Risk review and reporting 

Risk registers will be reviewed on a quarterly basis and more often if appropriate.  After this 
review the Risk Group will meet to share updates on the development of risks and of mitigating 
action.  Based on this discussion the Lead Officer will prepare an update report for CMT which 
will then be used to inform the quarterly review of the Corporate Risk Register.    The report will 
cover: 

• Progress of risk management action plans 

• Risks managed down to acceptable levels 

• Significant emerging risks, their severity/likelihood score and what action is to be 
taken. 

 
The Corporate Risk Register will be updated as necessary and CMT will be advised 
accordingly. 

16



RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 

 9 

Areas for Review and Development 
 

Role of Corporate Risk 
Group (Business 
Transformation Team) 

• Ensure that the team acts successfully to 
challenge and support risk management and 
to identify key issues for escalation 

Risk Reporting • Assessing the opportunities for reviewing 
Service Plans/VERTO project management 
system  for risk reporting 

Standardisation and 
consistency 

• Ensuring the quality of risk registers 
included quality of risk description  

Ensuring action to mitigate 
risks 

• Review the management action 
arrangements 

Embedding risk 
management into key 
business processes 

• Ensuring risks are considered as part of 
integrated planning and performance 
reporting 

• Ensuring risks relating to decisions are 
clearly presented 

Promote the updated 
approach  

• Approval by CMT; visits to DMTs; support 
and advice 

Role of Members • Offering training aimed at ensuring members 
understand the risk management process 
and expectations upon officers 

 
 
Document links  
 
Appendix A -  Risk Management process 
Appendix B - (Risk Management and Planning and Performance Management arrangements). 
Corporate Risk Register Template  
Service Risk Register Template 

 

 

 
 
 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

                                                                          

 

 

 

 

 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT 

 
POLICY DOCUMENT 

 

 
Purpose: 
 
To provide clear evidence of the effective operation of the Business Continuity 
Management System (BCMS) and the organisation’s implementation of BCM. 
 

  Appendix 2 

19



 2 

 

 

 

Document Control 
 

Title: Peterborough City Council Business Continuity Policy  

Synopsis: This document outlines the effective operation of the Business 
Continuity Management System (BCMS) and the organisation’s 
implementation of BCM. 

Status: FIRST DRAFT  

Date: October 2012 

Document 
Owner(s): 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) 

Author(s): Kevin Dawson 

Change Control: Version 
ID 

Date 
of 
Issue 

Change 
Description 

Author 

 0.1  Oct 2012  Kevin Dawson 

 0.2 19 Oct 2012 Consultation with Internal  
Audit 

Kevin Dawson 

     

 

Version ID Date of 
Submission 

Submitted to Approval and Sign Off 

1.0 

 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 3 

 
 
 
Glossary of Terms  

 

BCM Business Continuity 
Management 

Holistic management process that identifies potential 
threats to an organisation and the impact to business 
operations that those risks, if realised, might cause, and 
which provides a framework for building organisational 
resilience with the capability for an effective response 
that safeguards the interests of its key stakeholders, 
reputation, brand, and value creating activity 

BCMS Business Continuity 
Management System 

 That part of the overall management system that 
establishes, implements, operates, monitors, reviews, 
maintains and improves business continuity. 

BCP Business Continuity 
Plan 

Documented collection of procedures and information 
that is developed, compiled and maintained in the 
readiness for use in an incident to enable an 
organisation to continue to deliver its critical activities at 
an acceptable predefined level 

BD Business Disruption An event whether anticipated (e.g. a labour strike) or 
unanticipated (e.g. a power cut), which causes an 
unplanned, negative deviation from the expected 
delivery of products or services according to the 
organisation’s objectives. 

BIA Business Impact 
Analysis 

Process of analysing key services and the effect that a 
business disruption might have upon them 

CA Critical Activities Those activities which have to be performed in order to 
deliver the key products and services which enable an 
organisation to meet it’s most important and time-
sensitive objectives. 

CCA Civil Contingencies Act Legislation placing a duty on Local Authorities to have 
business continuity arrangements in place. 

 Corrective Action The process of reacting to an existing problem or 
nonconformity and fixing it. 

DR Disaster Recovery The process, policies and procedures related to the 
recovery or continuation of technology infrastructure 
critical to an organisation following a business disruption  

EMT Emergency 
Management Team 

The team that takes the lead role in planning for, 
coordinating a response to, and supporting the recovery 
from emergencies, incidents and business disruptions.  

IMP Incident Management 
Plans 

Clearly defined and documented plan of action for use at 
the time of an incident, typically covering the key 
personnel, resources, services and actions needed to 
implement the incident management process. 

 Key Services The most important and time sensitive services delivered 
by the council. 

MTPOD Maximum Tolerable 
Period of Disruption 

Duration after which an organisation’s viability will be 
irrevocably threatened if products and service delivery 
can not be resumed 

 Preventative Action  A process for detecting potential problems or 
nonconformities and eliminating them.  

RTO Recovery Time 
Objective 

Target time set for resumption of product, service or 
activity delivery after an incident. 

 

21



 4 

1. The Scope and Objectives of the Business Continuity Management System 
(BCMS)  (BS 25999 Ref: 3.2.1) 

1.1 Requirements for Business Continuity 

1.2 The BCMS shall provide evidence of: 

• a clear expression of the organisation’s Business Continuity Management (BCM) 
requirement 

• controls and measures that manage its continuity risks 

• monitoring and feedback on BCM performance and effectiveness 

• continual improvement using objective measurement 
 

1.3 In addition, the BCMS shall provide evidence of: 

• a  tailored BCM Policy aligned with organisational requirements 

• viable organisational structures reflecting BCM roles and responsibilities 

• an embedded “Plan-Do-Check-Act” management processes 

• a full set of auditable documentation 

• established BCM-specific processes, such as Business Impact Analysis (BIA) 
and Business Continuity Plan (BCP) production 

 

1.4 Acceptable Level of Risk  

1.5 Risk is essentially any feature of an organisation which is likely to prevent that 
organisation from achieving its primary aims. In general, the lower the risk the higher 
the performance is likely to be.  A successful risk management policy therefore 
needs to take a holistic view of risk as being a potential feature of the whole 
organisation. The organisation is in turn composed of components which themselves 
may contain appreciable risk factors. 

1.6 Statutory, Regulatory and Contractual Duties 

1.7 The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires Category 1 responders (This includes 
Peterborough City Council) to maintain plans to ensure that they can continue to 
exercise their functions in the event of an emergency so far as is reasonably 
practicable.  

1.8 The duty relates to all functions, not just emergency response functions. Category 1 
responders must have regard to assessments of both internal and external risks 
when developing and reviewing business continuity plans. These plans may take the 
form of generic plans, which set out the core of a Category 1 responder’s response to 
any BCM event, or specific plans dealing with particular risks, sites or services. 

1.9 There must be a clear procedure for invoking the business continuity plan and it must 
include arrangements for exercises for the purpose of ensuring the plan is effective.  
Arrangements should be included for the provision of training to those involved in 
implementing the plan and plans must be reviewed and kept up to date. Category 1 
responders are required to publish aspects of their BCPs insofar as making this 
information available is necessary or desirable for the purposes of dealing with 
emergencies. 

1.10 Interests of key stakeholders 

1.11 A key stakeholder is a person or body of people who have a vested interest in an 
organisation’s business.  For a local authority, typical stakeholders may include:  
 

• staff 

• customers 

• suppliers 

22



 5 

• regulators 

• governing bodies 

• elected members 

• representative bodies 

• other local authorities 
 

1.12 Details of key stakeholders are documented in services BIA. 

1.13 Interests of key stakeholders 

1.14 Key products and services are the most important and time sensitive services 
delivered by the Council to meet its objectives.  These key services should dovetail 
into the Councils current priorities which are; 

• Creating opportunities – tackling in equalities 

• Creating strong and supportive communities 

• Creating the UK’s environment capital 

• Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth 
 

2. Business Continuity Management Policy (BS 25999 Ref: 3.2.2) 

2.1 Purpose: 

2.2 The purpose of this policy is to formalise the BCMS of Peterborough City Council 
(PCC) and to provide guidelines for developing, maintaining and exercising Business 
Continuity Plans (BCPs).  This policy establishes the basic principles and framework 
necessary to ensure emergency response, resumption and recovery of the 
organisation’s operations and service activities during a business disruption. 

2.3 Scope: 

2.4 This policy applies to all Council staff, facilities and IT systems at all locations.  The 
Council shall be prepared for scenarios including, but not limited to loss of premises, 
loss of staff, supplier failure, loss of I.T, loss of data and loss of utilities. These events 
may be localised, impacting a single location or county-wide impacting multiple 
locations.  This policy provides guidance for the resumption and recovery of time 
sensitive services in accordance with pre-established timeframes. 

2.5 Policy: 

2.6 PCC recognises the potential strategic, operational, financial and stakeholder risks 
associated with a business disruption and the importance of maintaining Council’s 
business processes in the event of a business disruption.  Business continuity policy 
and planning are fundamental to ensure against adverse organisational and 
reputational risk of a business disruption. 

2.7 All arrangements will comply with this policy and EMT will monitor the consistent 
application of the BCMS to ensure that the Corporate Management Team (CMT) can 
make decisions based on harmonised information. 

2.8 Responsibilities: 

2.9 The PCC CMT is responsible for this policy and for ensuring that it is communicated 
to all persons working for, or on behalf of, the organisation.  

2.10 All levels of management within PCC have a responsibility for maintaining business 
continuity arrangements within their area of business with overall responsibility lying 
with the Chief Executive Officer.  

    

23



 6 

2.11 Business Impact Analysis and Risk Assessment: 

2.12 CMT will establish and set out the key objectives of the Council.  This will inform 
managers to decide what key services need to be taken forward to the business 
impact analysis (BIA). 

2.13 A BIA will be undertaken by Heads of Service on their key services to identify critical 
activities.  This shall also identify the maximum tolerable period of disruption 
(MTPOD) and recovery time objectives (RTO). 

2.14 Critical activities will be risk assessed and the owner of that critical activity will take 
the appropriate loss mitigation or risk treatment measures.   

2.15 Business Continuity Plans: 

2.16 CMT shall sponsor the development of the Corporate BCP to assist recovery from an 
organisation wide crisis and provide, at the very minimum, strategic decisions upon 
which critical activities should be recovered before others.  

2.17 BCPs will also be prepared at a Service or Directorate level and be owned and 
signed off by the senior management within this area of business.  These plans will 
cover localised business disruptions and set out processes for recovering critical 
activities within their RTO and the medium term actions to return to ‘business as 
usual’.  These plans will also support the Corporate BCP work effectively.  

2.18 Plans may also be prepared at departmental level where the department warrants its 
own business continuity plan due to the key services it delivers or the nature of its 
function.  This will be at the discretion of the service manager.  In most instances a 
BCP will be prepared where there is a Service Plan.  These plans will also support 
the Services/Directorate BCP work effectively. 

2.19 Plans shall anticipate the impact from a variety of probable scenarios.  The BC policy 
and planning should recognise that staff are the most important asset of Council for 
ensuring the necessary ability of the Council to continue critical business processes 
in spite of an emergency. 

2.20 SMT shall have overall oversight as to the creation of local plans to provide 
leadership and guidance, and ensure appropriate consistency and coordination 
among the various departments, as well as compliance with national standards. 

2.21 Testing: 

2.22 The Corporate BCP should be tested annually to ensure credible recovery 
preparedness. The scope, objectives, and measurement criteria of each test shall be 
determined and coordinated by CMT on a per event basis. Test results shall be 
shared across the organisation.   

2.23 Authors or owners of BCPs will undertake to carry out tests annually (for example 
confirming contact numbers and checking the location of resources) to guarantee the 
accuracy of this information.   

2.24 Corporate Communications: 

2.25 The overarching and department/service-specific BCPs shall include mandatory 
instructions, advice, process, procedure or guidance concerning internal and external 
communications. External communication during time of crisis is a critical business 
process. The CMT shall work with Corporate Communications to develop the 
process and messages that will be communicated to the media and to staff in the 
event of a county-wide or department/service-specific business interruption. 

 

24



 7 

 

2.26 Training: 

2.27 It is essential that anyone who has role within the BCMS is aware of their role and 
given the appropriate training to ensure the effective resumption and recovery of 
operations. 

2.28 Plan authors/owners will be responsible for providing training to individuals that they 
have identified as having a role within their plan.  

2.29 The Resilience Service will provide training to individuals who have a responsibility to 
develop and maintain business continuity arrangements.   

2.30 BCP Maintenance and Management Reporting: 

2.31 The overarching and department/service-specific BCPs shall be updated annually 
using the templates provided by the Resilience Service . All PCC departments shall 
update their BCPs as often as changes require.  Major updates should be 
incorporated as soon as possible and not held to the pre-arranged schedule.  
Reporting business continuity planning status and progress is a key element of 
creating an effective BC program in the organisation.  

2.32 Business Continuity Programme Governance: 

2.33 As demonstrated in this policy, Business Continuity is an institutional concern 
affecting all departments and therefore must receive senior management guidance 
and oversight.  A formal BC programme governance structure shall be developed to 
ensure effective decision-making and alignment with BS 25999. 

2.34 Policy Compliance: 

2.35 Consistent compliance with this policy is essential to its effectiveness.  All PCC 
Services and Directorates are expected to adhere to this policy and to follow it 
consistently.   

3. Provision of Resources (BS 25999 Ref: 3.2.3) 

3.1 The organisation shall determine and provide the resources needed to establish, 
implement, operate and maintain the BCMS.   

3.2 CMT has appointed the Executive Director ………….. as the person with appropriate 
seniority and authority to be accountable for the BCM Policy and its implementation. 

3.3 The Resilience Manager has been appointed to implement and maintain the BCMS. 

3.4 Each Service/Directorate shall identify at least one BC Champion who will coordinate 
the assessment of key services through the BIA and produce Service/Directorate 
level BCPs. 

3.5 Further BC Champions may be appointed as dictated by the requirement to deliver 
key services. 

3.6 BCM roles, responsibilities, competencies and authority shall be defined and 
documented within each BCP.   Dependent on individual BCPs these will include: 

• telecommunications and information systems 

• office buildings and facilities 

• service facilities 

• plant and equipment 

• personnel 
 

25



 8 

4. The Competency of Personnel and Associated Training Records  

(BS 25999 Ref: 3.2.4) 

4.1 The Council shall ensure that personnel who are assigned business continuity 
responsibilities are competent to perform the required tasks by: 

• determining the necessary competencies for such personnel; 

• conducting training needs analysis on personnel being assigned BCM roles and 
responsibilities; 

• providing training;  

• ensuring that the necessary competence has been achieved; and 

• maintaining records of education, training, skills, experience and qualifications 
 

5. BCM Exercising (BS 25999 Ref: 4.4.2) 

5.1 The Council shall exercise its BCM arrangements to ensure that they meet business 
requirements.  The organisation shall: 

• develop exercises that are consistent with the scope of the BCMS; 

• have a programme approved by CMT to ensure exercises are carried out at 
planned intervals and when significant changes occur; 

• carry out a range of different exercises that taken together validate the whole of 
its business continuity arrangements; 

• plan exercises so that the risk of an incident occurring as a direct result of the 
exercise is minimized; 

• define the aims and objectives of every exercise; 

• carry out a post-exercise review of each exercise that will assess the 
achievement of the aims and objectives of the exercise; and 

• produce a written report of the exercise, outcome and feedback, including 
required actions. 

 

6. Maintaining and reviewing BCM arrangements (BS 25999 Ref: 4.4.3) 

6.1 The Council will review annually or after significant changes occur, its BCM 
arrangements and capability to ensure their continuing suitability, adequacy and 
effectiveness. 

6.3 The review of BCM arrangements shall be conducted either through self-assessment 
or audit. 

6.4 The self-assessment programme will be coordinated by EMT in conjunction with the 
plan owner/author and action will be taken to address the gaps identified in the 
assessment. 

6.4 In the event of an incident that results in the invocation of the Business Continuity 
Plan, a post-incident review shall be undertaken to: 

• identify the nature and cause of the incident; 

• assess the adequacy of management’s response; 

• assess the organisation’s effectiveness in meeting its recovery time objectives; 

• assess the adequacy of the BCM arrangements in preparing employees for the 
incident; and 

• identify improvements to be made to the BCM arrangements. 
 

6.5 It is responsibility of all services to inform EMT of all invocations and for EMT to 
coordinate post incident review and inform CMT annually on the organisations state 
of preparedness.  

 

26



 9 

7. Internal Audit (BS 25999 Ref: 5.1) 

7.1 The guidance states that the organisation shall ensure that internal audits are 
conducted triennially to determine whether the BCMS:  

• conforms to planned arrangements for BCM, including the requirements of this 
BCM standard; and 

• has been properly implemented and is maintained; and 

• is effective in meeting the organisation’s BCM policy and objectives; and 

• provides information on the results of audits to management. 
 

7.2 The audit programme(s) shall be planned, established, implemented and maintained 
by the organisation, taking into account the BIA, risk assessment, control and 
mitigation measures and the results of previous audits. 

7.3 Audit procedure(s) shall be established, implemented and maintained that address: 

• the responsibilities, competencies and requirements for planning and conducting 
audits, reporting results and retaining associated records; and 

• the determination of audit criteria, scope, frequency and methods. 

Selection of auditors and conduct of audits shall ensure objectivity and the 
impartiality of the audit process. 

8. Management review of the BCMS 

8.1 CMT shall review the organisation’s BCMS at planned intervals and when significant 
changes occur to ensure its continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness.  This 
review shall include assessing opportunities for improvement and the need for 
changes to the BCMS, including the business continuity management policy and 
business continuity management objectives.  The results of the reviews shall be 
clearly documented and records shall be maintained. 

8.2 The input to a management review shall include information on: 

• results of audits and reviews, including where appropriate those of key suppliers 
and outsource partners; 

• feedback from interested parties, including independent observations; 

• techniques, products or procedures, which could be used in the organisation; 

• status of preventive and corrective actions; 

• level of residual risk and acceptable risk; 

• vulnerabilities or threats not adequately addressed in the previous risk 
assessment; 

• follow-up actions from previous management reviews; 

• any internal or external changes that could affect the BCMS; recommendations 
for improvement; 

• exercise results; 

• emerging good practice and guidance; 

• lessons from incidents; and 

• results of the education and awareness training programme. 

8.3 The output from the management review shall include any decisions and actions 
related to: 

• varying the scope; 

• improving the effectiveness ; 

• modifying the strategy and procedures, including changes to: 
o business requirements; 
o resilience requirements; 
o business processes affecting the existing business requirements; 

27



 10 

o statutory, regulatory and contractual requirements; and levels of risk 
and/or levels of risk acceptance; 

• resource needs; and funding and budget requirements. 
 

9. Preventive and Corrective Actions 

9.1 PCC shall improve the BCMS through the application of preventive and corrective 
actions.  Any preventive or corrective action taken shall be appropriate to the 
magnitude of the problems and commensurate with the business continuity policy 
and organisational objectives. Changes arising from preventive and corrective 
actions shall be reflected in the BCMS documentation. 

10. Continual Improvement 

The organisation shall continually improve the effectiveness of the BCMS through the 
review of the business continuity policy and objectives, audit results, analysis of 
monitored events, preventive and corrective actions, and management review. 

 

28



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member responsible: Councillor Seaton, Resources Portfolio Holder 

Committee Member responsible: Councillor Lamb, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): Diane Baker, Head of Governance  ( 452559 

 
REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) ANNUAL REPORT FOR 1 
JULY 2012 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2012 AND AN UPDATE ON RIPA POLICY CHANGES. 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Paul Phillipson, Executive Director - Operations 
 

Deadline date : N/A 

Audit Committee is asked to  
 
1. Receive, consider and endorse this report on the use of RIPA for the three months from 1 

July 2012 to 30 September 2012. 

 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
 This report is submitted to the Committee as a scheduled report on the Council’s use of 

RIPA in accordance with the established Work Programme 2012 / 2013. 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
 The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the Council's use of RIPA 

powers in the three months from 1 July 2012 to 30 September 2012. This report is to 
be considered in accordance with its Terms of Reference 2.2.15 - To monitor Council 
policies on "raising concern at work" and the anti fraud and anti corruption strategy and 
the Council's complaints process. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) provides a statutory 

mechanism for authorising covert surveillance and the use of a ‘covert human 
intelligence source’ (CHIS) e.g. undercover agents. It now also permits Public 
Authorities to compel telecommunications and postal companies to obtain and release 
communications data, in certain circumstances. It seeks to ensure that any interference 
with an individual’s right under Article 8 is necessary and proportionate. In doing so, 
RIPA seeks to ensure both the public interest and the human rights of individuals are 
suitably balanced.      

 
3.2 Council officers and external agencies working on behalf of Peterborough City Council 

must comply with RIPA and any work carried out must be properly authorised by one of 
the Council’s Authorising Officers. The powers contained within the Act can only be 
used for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder.  

 

29



3.3 The Council has established strong governance around the use of RIPA and provides 
assurance to the citizens of Peterborough that the powers are only used where 
necessary and proportionate and in accordance with the law.  

 
3.4 In terms of the Council’s use of RIPA powers for this period, it can be reported that    

there have been no authorisations either for surveillance or access to communications        
data, such as the subscriber of telephone numbers, during July to September 2012.   

 
3.5 The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 makes changes to provisions under RIPA. As of 

1st November 2012, local authorities will have to obtain approval from a Justice of the 
Peace before utilising RIPA. The changes will also mean that Peterborough City 
Council can only apply to use RIPA if investigating criminal offences where the 
maximum custodial sentence is six months or more or when investigating underage 
sales of alcohol or tobacco. A policy with associated guidance is being developed at 
draft stage following the recent receipt of Home Office guidance. This revised policy will 
be presented at the next Audit Committee for discussion and approval. However, in the 
intervening period, Peterborough City Council’s RIPA authorising officers will ensure 
that the use of RIPA powers comply with the law. 

 
4.  CONSULTATION 

 
 Consultation has taken place between the following parties: 

• Solicitor to the Council; 

• Executive Director of Operations (as the Senior Officer with oversight for 
RIPA); and 

• Chief Internal Auditor 
 
5. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

That the Audit Committee continues to be informed of the necessary and proportionate 
use of RIPA across the Authority.  

 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 There are no recommendations contained within this report. 
 
7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
 The option is not to present an annual or quarterly report, which details the use of 

RIPA. This could result in a lack of assurance and a potential lack of support from the 
Audit Committee. Failure to report usage for Member review contravenes the RIPA 
Codes of Practice.  

 
8. IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The implications of this report are that the Council will become more aware of RIPA 

and its value to the Council’s many enforcement teams. The Council has already 
created a positive profile and has been congratulated on its adherence to the 
legislation by the Office of Surveillance Commissioners.  
 

 

30



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No.6 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Helen, Edwards, Solicitor to the Council Tel. 452539 

 
REPORT TO CONSIDER DISPENSATIONS AND HEARING PANEL PROCEDURES 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Helen Edwards, Solicitor to the Council Deadline date : 5 November 2012 

 

The Audit Committee is asked to: 
 

1.  Consider granting a general dispensation to all Members who may have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to the functions 
of the authority in respect of: 

 
i. Housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those functions do not 

relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; 
ii. School meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you are a parent or 

guardian of a child in full time education, or are a parent governor of a school, unless 
it relates particularly to the school which the child attends; 

iii. Statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 
1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay; 

iv. An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members; 
v. Any ceremonial honour given to Members; and  
vi. Setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 

 
2.  Consider applications made by Members with a disclosable pecuniary interest seeking 

individual dispensations to speak and vote; 
 

3.  Approve the process by which a sub-committee to the Audit Committee is selected and 
review the Hearings Panel procedure; and 

 
4.  Receive an update on the progress made regarding the recruitment of the Council’s 

Independent Person and Deputy Independent Person. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 The new regime for promoting high standards of conduct amongst elected and co-opted 
Members of the City Council became operational following approval at Full Council on 11 
July 2012.  This report is submitted to the Audit Committee by the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer as part of their statutory duties, in order to adhere to regulations introduced by the 
Localism Act 2011. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is for the Audit Committee to: 
 

• Grant a blanket dispensation to allow all Members who may have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to 
the functions of the authority in respect of 1(i) to (vi) above, to speak and /or vote at 
a meeting; 

 

31



• Grant individual dispensations by Members to speak and vote, whereby the request 
for dispensation has been made in writing in advance of the meeting; 

 

• Consider and approve the process by which the sub-committee to the Audit 
Committee (Hearings Panel) will be formed and review the Hearings Panel 
procedure; 

 

• Receive an update on the progress made regarding the recruitment of the Council’s  
Independent Person and Deputy Independent Person. 

  
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 
4 DISPENSATIONS 

 

4.1 Blanket dispensation 
 

Members may have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the authority where 
that business relates to the functions of the authority in respect of: 
 

i. Housing, where you are a tenant of your authority provided that those functions do 
not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; 

ii. School meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you are a parent 
or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a parent governor of a school, 
unless it relates particularly to the school which the child attends; 

iii. Statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions and Benefits 
Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of, such pay; 

iv. An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members; 
v. Any ceremonial honour given to Members; and  
vi. Setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 

 
4.2 A general dispensation should be granted to allow all Members to speak and/or vote with 
 regards to the above. This is consistent with the previous code of conduct in which these 
 items were specifically excluded from the definition of a prejudicial interest, and is also 
 consistent with the general approach being taken by the majority of other councils. 
 
4.3 Individual Dispensations 
 
 The Code of Conduct provides that if an elected or co-opted Member has what is described 

in the code as a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) they should not speak or vote on the 
matter.  The legislation provides, in certain circumstances, that a Member may request a 
partial dispensation from the Monitoring Officer to speak at the meeting or a full 
dispensation from the Audit Committee to speak and to vote at the meeting.  A 
dispensation may be granted only for one meeting OR for a period of up to 4 years. 

 
4.4 The Monitoring Officer or Audit Committee may decide to constitute a sub-committee to 
 determine a request for dispensation so that it can be dealt with more quickly than waiting 
 for the next scheduled meeting. 
 
4.5 Appendix 1 contains applications from Members seeking dispensation, and the Audit 
 Committee is asked to consider and determine these applications.   

 
4.6 Sub-committee to the Audit Committee (Hearings Panel) 
 

The Hearings Panel is a sub-committee of the Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee 
comprises eight Members of the Council appointed annually.  The Council has resolved (at 
its meeting in July 2012) that the Audit Committee does not need to comply with the rules 

32



regarding political balance.  This is to ensure that at least one Member of each party within 
the Council may sit on the Audit Committee.   
 

4.7 The Hearings Panel has the following functions: 
 

• To consider matters referred by the Monitoring Officer granting dispensation to 
Councillors and Co-opted Members allowing them to (a) participate in the debate 
and/or (b) vote on any matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest; 

• To consider matters being referred by the Monitoring Officer deciding whether 
complaints concerning Members should be investigated; 

• Hearing complaints that have been referred to them by the Monitoring Officer 
pursuant to the Complaints Procedure; and 

• The agreement of relevant procedures for the undertaking of its functions such 
when appropriate to be included within the constitution. 

 
4.8 The sub-committee will comprise of three Members of the Audit Committee and the three 
 Members will be selected as and when a sub-committee is required to meet. 

 
4.9 A Hearings Panel procedure is attached at Appendix 2, for consideration and approval.  
 
4.10 Recruitment of Independent Person and Deputy Independent Person 
 

The Localism Act 2011 requires that all Local Authorities must appoint at least one 
Independent Person.  The role of the Independent Person is to oversee the process for 
dealing with allegations that a Member has breached the Members’ Code of Conduct.  The 
Act states that the Independent Person should be available to be consulted by a Member 
who is the subject of an allegation that they have breached the Members’ Code of Conduct.  
In addition, an Independent Person must be consulted by the decision making body before 
it makes a final decision on an allegation that has been investigated.  The decision making 
body at Peterborough City Council is the Hearings Panel, sub-committee of the Audit 
Committee. 
 

4.11 The arrangements adopted by Full Council in July include provision for the appointment of 
 one Independent Person and one Deputy Independent Person. 

 
4.12 A previous recruitment exercise failed to generate any interest, and a second recruitment 
 exercise is currently underway, with potential candidates scheduled to be interviewed on 5th 
 November.  A copy of the application pack, including role description is attached as 
 Appendix 3. 

 
4.13 The legislation dictates that the actual appointment must be a decision undertaken by Full 
 Council and consequently, Full Council must receive a recommendation from the sub-
 committee to the Audit Committee. It is hoped that we will be in a position to make a 
 recommendation to Full Council at its next meeting.  
 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

Following the resolution of Council in July all Members have been consulted on the 
changes to the Code of Conduct and procedures, declaring interests, dispensations and 
the new Member complaints system. 
 

6.  ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

 As set out in the report. 
 
7.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
The Council is required to abide by the provisions of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
 

33



8.  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

These recommendations have been prepared in accordance with the Code and hence 
there are no acceptable alternative formats. The alternative is not to adopt these 
recommendations, and then the Council would be in breach of its statutory duties.  

 
9.  IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no specific legal or financial implications, other than the legal requirement and 
implications set out in the report. 

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
  

 Council’s Constitution, the Localism Act 2011 and associated regulations. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 

• Appendix 1 - Applications from Members seeking dispensation 

• Appendix 2 - Hearings Panel Procedure 

• Appendix 3 - Independent Person Application Pack 
 

34



Appendix 1 

35



36



Appendix 1

37



38



1 
 

 

COMPLAINTS AGAINST MEMBERS 

HEARINGS PROCEDURE 

 

 
In accordance with the Protocol for dealing with complaints the Audit Sub-Committee 
will only meet where  

• A request for dispensation has been made to vote on a matter in which a 
Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest 

• The Audit Sub-Committee receive a referral from the Monitoring Officer for a 
decision as to whether a matter ought to be referred for investigation 

• an investigation has been conducted following a complaint which has 
concluded that the Code of Conduct has been breached and informal 
resolution is not possible 

 
This is a guidance note setting out how the Audit Sub-Committee (Hearings Panel) 
will hear complaints that the Code of Conduct has been breached.  The purpose of a 
hearing will be to determine if the panel agrees with the findings of the investigation. 
 

1. Following receipt of the report the Monitoring Officer will write to the complainant, the 
member complained of and advise them of the intention to refer the investigation 
report to the Hearings Panel for a decision 

 
2. The Monitoring Officer will contact the Independent Person advising them of the 

referral of the complaint to the Hearings Panel and invite the Independent Person to 
provide written report on the complaint for referral to the Panel. 

 
3. Once notified of the date of the hearing the complainant and the member complained 

must submit any further evidence and/or witness statements to the Monitoring Officer 
at least 14 days in advance of the hearing date 

 
4. All paperwork submitted to the Monitoring Officer will be collated into a report for the 

Hearings Panel and issued in accordance with the statutory requirements for access 
to information.  

 
5. Should the complainant or member complained of want the hearing to be held in 

private, they should provide reasons why the information is confidential at least 21 
days prior to the hearing so that the Monitoring Officer can consider whether the 
report should be marked confidential.   

 
6. The decision regarding confidentiality is at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer.  If 

the Monitoring Officer decides that the papers are confidential that decision will be 
subject to review by the Panel before they go into private (exempt) session to decide 
the matter. 

 
7. The hearing will be before a Panel of 3 members drawn from the Audit Committee.  

Appendix 2 

39



2 
 

 
8. One of the members present will be elected Chairman. 

 
9. The Independent Person [IP] appointed under section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 

will also be present to sit alongside the panel.  Their opinion will be taken into 
account by the Panel, but by law the Independent Person may not vote.  

 
10. The Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer will be present as advisor to the 

Panel. 
 

11. The investigating officer will attend to present the investigation report and may invite 
the complainant to appear as a witness or call other witnesses. 

 
12. The councillor will be invited to attend and may present their own case or they may 

be represented. 
 

13. The councillor may bring witnesses (of a number the Panel considers is reasonable).  
“Character witnesses” who cannot provide evidence on the matter complained about 
will not be permitted.  

 
14. The cost of any attendance/representation must be borne by the party concerned. 

 
15. Written statements will not be read out at the hearing as it will be assumed all those 

present are already familiar with their contents. 
 

16. The Monitoring Officer can speak at any time to advise the Panel on technical 
matters or ask questions of any party. 

 
A procedure note regarding the hearing process is attached at appendix A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



3 
 

Appendix A 
Hearing process note: Code of Conduct complaints 
 

HEARING PROCEDURE 

 
PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1 The Chairman of the Panel will introduce the members of the Panel, the 
Independent Person, officers, the councillor, the investigating officer and 
the complainant if present. 
 

2. The Chairman will explain the reason for the meeting and outline the 
procedure to be followed. 
The Chairman may choose to vary this procedure if they are of the opinion 
that such a variation is necessary in the interests of fairness. 
 

3. The Chairman will also explain that the hearing will normally be held in 
public unless the Panel exercises its discretion to exclude the public from 
all or part of the hearing in accordance with the Local Government Act 
1972.   
 

4. The Monitoring Officer will confirm whether there has been a request for 
the hearing, or any part of it to be held in private.  
 

5. The Chairman will then confirm that all those involved understand the 
procedure to be followed and ask if there are any preliminary procedural 
issues which anyone wishes to raise before the Hearing begins 
 

6. If any procedural issues are raised, the Panel will hear representations on 
them and determine them before beginning the hearing.  
 

7.  If the Councillor is not present at the start of the hearing, the Panel will 
consider any reasons given by them for their nonattendance.  If the Panel 
is satisfied that there is good reason for their non-attendance, it may 
adjourn to another date, or proceed if it has been requested to do so by the 
Councillor. 
 

8. If the Panel is not satisfied that there is good reason for the Councillor’s 
non-attendance, or if the Councillor failed to give any reason for his/her 
non-attendance, the Panel can decide: 
• whether to consider the matter and make a determination in the absence 
of the Councillor, or 
• to adjourn the Hearing to another date. 
 

 
HEARING 

9 The Investigator will be invited to summarise his/her report and findings 
and make any representations about any pre-hearing submission of the 
Councillor. The Investigator may call any witnesses, including the 
complainant. 
 

41



4 
 

10. The Councillor will then be invited to make representations in support of 
the facts concerned. The Councillor may call any witnesses in support of 
the facts.  Character witnesses will not be permitted. 
 

11. The Panel has the discretion to question any of the parties as they see fit. 
 

12. The Independent Person or the Monitoring Officer may question any of the 
parties at the discretion of the Chair. 
 

12. The councillor and the investigator/complainant will be given the 
opportunity to make closing statements if they wish to do so. 
 

13. The Panel and the Independent Person will retire to consider the matter in 
private.  The Monitoring Officer may be called to give legal advice or clarify 
any of the evidence as required. 
 

 
THE DECISION 

14. The Chairman will then announce to all present at the Hearing the Panel’s 
decision as to whether or not the Councillor has failed to comply with the 
Code of Conduct, whilst setting out the facts upon which the conclusions 
have been reached. 
 

15. If the Panel decides that the Councillor has not failed to follow the Code of 
Conduct, the hearing will be concluded. 
 

16. If the Panel decides that the Councillor has failed to comply with the Code 
of Conduct, it will consider any verbal or written representations from the 
Investigator, the Monitoring Officer, and the Councillor as to: 
(a) whether or not the Panel should impose a sanction and/or recommend 
to Council that a sanction be imposed; and 
(b) what form of sanction(s) is/are appropriate. 
 

17. The Panel may retire to consider these representations in private  
 

18.  The Panel will announce its decision in public at the conclusion of the 
hearing and will issue a full written decision including reasons within 10 
working days of the hearing. 
 

 
A note on sanctions: 

 
Under the Protocol for dealing with complaints, the Council has decided that the 
Hearings Panel may issue the following sanctions:- 
 

a. Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct; 

b. Report its findings to Council for information; 

42



5 
 

c. Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped members, 

recommend to Council or to Committees) that they be removed from any or all 

Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council; 

d. Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from the 

Cabinet, or removed from particular Portflio responsibilities; 

e. Recommend to Council to remove the member from all outside appointments to 

which they have been appointed or nominated by the authority; 

f. Recommend to Council that it withdraws facilities provided to the member by the 

Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and Internet access; or 

g. Recommend to Council that it excludes the member from the Council’s offices or 

other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending 

Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings. 

 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RECRUITMENT PACK FOR 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENT OF 

INDEPENDENT PERSON 

Appendix 3 

45



PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

 
APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON 

 
Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to appoint an 

Independent Person to assist the Council in promoting and maintaining high standards of 

conduct amongst its elected members and town and parish councilors. Peterborough City 

Council intends to appoint an Independent Person and a Deputy Independent Person. 

 
The Independent Person may be consulted by the Monitoring Officer on the decision 

whether to investigate complaints and a decision is made on an investigated complaint. 

The Independent Person may a l so be consulted on other standards matters, including by 

the member who is subject to an allegation. 

 
For further details, including an information pack and eligibility criteria, please visit the 

Council’s website or contact: 

 
Natalie Moult 

Executive Assistant to the Monitoring Officer 

 
Tel: 01733 452527 

Email: natalie.moult@peterborough.gov.uk 

Website: www.peterborough.gov.uk 

 

The closing date for applications is 26
th

 October 2012.  Interviews will be held on 5
th

 

November 2012. 
 

 

A fixed allowance of £ 1 0 0 0  is payable together with reimbursement of travel and 

subsistence expenses to the Independent Person. The Deputy will be entitled to a £500 

allowance and expenses. 
 

 

It is intended to appoint an Independent Person together with a Deputy candidate to be in 

a position to act as Independent Person in the event that the person appointed is 

incapacitated, or otherwise unable to act because of a conflict of interest. 

46



APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSON – BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 the way that Peterborough City Council will 

deal with conduct complaints about its elected members and town and parish councillors in 

its area is changing. 

 
The Council will be responsible for deciding how to deal with standards issues at a local 

level, including adopting its own local code and determining what arrangements it will 

adopt to deal with complaints. A report was considered by the Council on the 12 July and 

you can access this report on the Council’s website. 

 
The Act provides that the Council must appoint an Independent Person to assist in 

discharging these responsibilities. Full details of the role and responsibilities of the 

Independent Person are included in this Recruitment Pack. 

 
The new arrangements will come into effect from the date of the Council meeting. 

 
This recruitment process is being managed by Helen Edwards, Peterborough City Council’s 

Monitoring Officer (supported by Kim Sawyer, Deputy Monitoring Officer), who has been 

given authority to recruit by the Council. The appointment will be formally confirmed at the 

next meeting of the Council in September. 

47



INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

SKILLS AND COMPETENCIES 
 

The Independent Person will have: 

  

• A keen interest in standards in public life  

• A wish to serve the local community and uphold local democracy  

• The ability to be objective, independent and impartial  

• Sound decision making skills  

• Leadership qualities, particularly in respect of exercising sound judgement  

  

 
The Independent Person will: 

 
• Be independent of any political party  

• Not be related to or a friend of any member of Peterborough City Council  

• Be a person in whose integrity the public can have confidence  

• Understand and comply with confidentiality requirements  

• Have a demonstrable interest in local issues  

• Have an awareness of the importance of ethical behaviours  

• Be a good communicator  

• Be able to exercise judgement impartially  

 
Desirable additional criteria are: 

 

• Working knowledge/experience of local government or other public service 

and/or of large complex organisations and awareness of and sensitivity to the 

political process. 

 
• Knowledge and understanding of judicial/quasi‐judicial or complaints processes. 

 
You should demonstrate in your application how you meet the above criteria as this will 

assist the short‐listing process. 

Means of assessment will be by application form and by interview. 

NOTE: 

 
I f  a p p o i n t e d ,  y o u  will be required to be contactable at all times during normal 

working hours by telephone or by email and to be available to attend hearings which may 

be held in the day time. You will be provided with at least 2 weeks notice of any hearing at 

which you must attend. 

48



 

 
 
 
 

Eligibility for Appointment 
 
 
 

By virtue of transitional arrangements the law does not prevent existing independent 

members of the Council’s Standards Committee from being eligible to apply for the role, 

however, it is the Council’s preference to appoint an Independent Person who was not 

formerly an independent member of a standards committee. If you were formally an 

independent member of any other Council, this does not apply to you. 

 
A person cannot be appointed as an Independent Person if they are or were within a period 

of 5 years prior to the appointment: 

 
• A member, co‐opted member or officer of the authority 

• A member, co‐opted member or officer of a parish council in the Council’s area, or a 

relative or close friend of the above 

49



ROLE OF INDEPENDENT PERSON –   

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 

ROLE DESCRIPTION 

 
Responsible to: The Council 

 
 
 

Liaison with: Monitoring Officer, members of the Audit Committee, officers and 

members of the District Council and Town and Parish Councillors 

within the district, key stakeholders within the community. 
 
 
 

1. To assist the Council in promoting high standards of conduct by elected and co‐opted 

members of P e t e r b o r o u g h  C i t y C o u n c i l  and in particular to uphold the Code of 

Conduct adopted by the Council and the seven principles of public office, namely 

selflessness, honesty, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness and leadership. 

 
2. To be consulted by the Council through the Monitoring Officer and/or the Audit 

Committee (Hearing Panel) before it makes a decision on an investigated allegation 

and to be available to attend meetings of the Hearing Panel of the Audit Committee 

for this purpose. 

 
3. To be available for consultation by the Monitoring Officer and/or the Audit Committee 

before a decision is taken as to whether to investigate a complaint or to seek local 

resolution of the same. 

 
4. To be available for consultation by any elected member, ( including town and parish 

councilors), who is the subject of a standards complaint. 

 
5. To develop a sound understanding of the ethical framework as it operates within 

Peterborough City Council and its town and parish councils. 

 
6. To participate in training events to develop skills, knowledge and experience and in 

networks developed for Independent Persons operating outside the Council’s area. 

 
7. To  attend  training  events  organised  and  promoted  by  the  Council’s Audit 

Committee. 

 
8. To act as advocate and ambassador for the Council in promoting ethical behaviour. 

50



 

 
 

 
 

 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

 
APPLICATION FOR THE POSITION OF INDEPENDENT PERSON 

 
Individuals who wish to be considered for appointment as Independent Person at 

Peterborough City Council are requested to provide the following information to support 

their application.  All information provided will be treated in the strictest confidence and 

will only be used for the purposes of selection. Please feel free to use a separate 

continuation page if you wish to expand upon your answer to any question outlined below. 
 
 
 

1. PERSONAL DETAILS 

 
Name: 

Address: 

 
 
 

Postcode: 

National Insurance Number: 

Contact Details: 

 

Daytime Telephone Number: 

Daytime Fax Number: 

Email Address: 
 
 
 

 
2. QUALIFICATIONS 

(Please list in particular any qualifications which you think are relevant to the position 

of Independent Person) 

51



PART B: You may complete the following part of the application or submit a Curriculum Vitae. 

If submitting a Curriculum Vitae please ensure you enclose details of referees. 
 

 

3. SUMMARY OF EXPERIENCE 

(Please give a brief account of your experience including career, public and voluntary 

work together with the nature of your current or most recent occupation) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. RELEVANT EXPERTISE/SKILLS 

(Please outline briefly any knowledge or expertise which you believe would be 

particularly  relevant  to  your  role  as  an  Independent  Person  having  regard  to  the 

selection criteria and role description) 

52



 

5. Why do you wish to be considered for appointment as Independent Person and what 

particular attributes do you believe you would bring to the role? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6. Please provide any additional information you may wish to give in support of your 

application: 

53



 

7. References will be taken up for all applicants who are invited for interview 
 

1. Name: 
 

........................................................ 

2. Name: 
 

...................................................... 

 
Address: 

 

........................................................ 

Address: 
 

...................................................... 
 

........................................................ ...................................................... 
 

........................................................ ...................................................... 

........................................................ 

Telephone No. ............................... 

...................................................... 

Telephone No. ............................. 
 
 
 

I wish to apply to be an Independent Person. 

In submitting this application, I declare that: 

•  I am not and have not during the past five years been a Member or Officer of 

Peterborough City Council 

•  I am not related to, or a close friend of, any Member or Officer of Peterborough City 

Council 

•  I am not currently an Officer or Member of any other relevant authority (this includes 

parish, district, county and unitary councils and Police and Fire Authorities). 

•  I am not actively engaged in local party political activity. 
 

 
 
 

Signed ................................................................................... 

Date ................................................................................... 

 

 

Please return this application form by 26
th

 October 2012 addressed to:  

Natalie Moult 

Executive Assistant to the Monitoring Officer 

Peterborough City Council 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Town Hall 

Bridge Street 

Peterborough 

PE1 1HG 

 
Email: natalie.moult@peterborough.gov.uk 

54



1 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Resources Portfolio Holder, Councillor Seaton 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison,  Executive Director Strategic 
Resources 

Steven Pilsworth, Head of Strategic Finance 

( 452398 

( 384569 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : John Harrison, Executive Director Strategic Resources   Deadline date : N/A 

Audit Committee is asked to 

1. To review current performance against the Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) set in the 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 The Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 

recommends that Members receive reports on its treasury management polices, 
practices and activities, including, an annual strategy and plan in advance of the 
year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close. 

   
1.2 The annual strategy is approved by Council as part of the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS) and the final performance against the strategy is reported to Audit 
Committee in June alongside the Statement of Accounts.  This report forms the mid-
year review. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 
2.1 To report current performance and the forecast outturn position against the 
 strategy.  
 
2.3 This is in accordance with the Committees’ Terms of Reference – 2.2.17 To consider 

the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing necessary 
actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  

 

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

4. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

 

4.1 The Prudential Code underpins the system of capital finance.  Local authorities 
determine their own programmes for capital investment in fixed assets that are  

55



2 

 central to the delivery of quality local public services.  Prudential indicators are 
developed as part of the annual MTFS process to ensure that:  
 a) Capital investment plans are affordable; 
 b) All external borrowing and other long term liabilities are within       

prudent and sustainable levels; and 
 c) Treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with       

professional good advice. 
 
4.2 The 2012/13 Prudential Indicators are shown in Appendix 1 and the Council’s 

performance to date and forecast performance is within the limits set in the MTFS.   
 
4.3 The Council has not been directly impacted by the continuing Eurozone crisis 

however, along with continued uncertainty within the UK economy; British banks 
have seen their credit ratings downgraded which has in turned affected the Council’s 
lending list.  As per the TMS the Council is operating a restrictive lending list, where 
surplus cash is only invested for the short term Barclays (maximum £5m), other Local 
Authorities, and the Debt Management Office (DMO). 

 
4.4 The Council’s own banking provider, Barclays, was downgraded in December 2011 

by Fitch credit rating agency following a review on global trading and universal banks, 
and later in July 2012 by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s credit rating agencies.  
This downgrading should not be viewed in isolation from other bank credit ratings and 
Barclays remain one of the highest rated banks compared to its UK competitors.   

 
4.5 The ratings from all three agencies for Barclays meet the minimum criteria set out in 

the Treasury Strategy, per the MTFS.  However, in order to mitigate the risk further 
the Council has reduced the amount held in the call account to £5m from £15m and 
has in place a contingency plan if Barclays are downgraded further.  The use of 
Barclays for the Council’s core banking services continues in the context of the MTFS 
of minimising the ‘cost of carry’ of borrowing.  As a result existing cash balances are 
used rather than borrowing in advance of need.  Daily treasury management 
practices therefore concentrate on short term cash flow requirements and long term 
borrowing needs, and not investment returns. 
 

5. CONSULTATION 

 
5.1 As ‘The Prudential Code and Treasury Management Strategy 2012-2022’ forms part 

of the annual MTFS, it has undergone full consultation and been through the scrutiny 
process. 

 
5.2 The Council continues to liaise with its treasury advisors, Sector Treasury Services 

Ltd. 
 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

 
6.1 As set out in the report. 
 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
7.1  This report and update is given to the Committee to review performance against the 

Treasury Management Strategy set in the MTFS 
 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 

56



3 

 The ‘The Prudential Code and Treasury Management Strategy 2012-2022’ is 
required to be prepared in accordance with the Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice 2011.  This report sets out the performance against the 
associated indicators.  The options are therefore limited. 

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 To provide the Committee the opportunity to review current performance against the 

revised Prudential Indicators.   
 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 (Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985) 

 

• The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities –2011 Edition, 
CIPFA; and 

• Treasury Management in the Public Services, Code of Practice and Cross-
Sectoral Guidance Notes – 2011 Edition, CIPFA 

 
11. APPENDICES 

 

Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Strategy - Prudential Indicators –  
   Forecast Outturn as at 24th October 2012 

 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Appendix 1 
 

Treasury Management Strategy - Prudential Indicators –  
Forecast Outturn as at 24th October 2012 

 

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities provides a framework 
for local authority capital finance to ensure that: 

(a) capital expenditure plans are affordable, 

(b) all external borrowing and other long term liabilities are within prudent 
and sustainable levels; 

(c) treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with 
professional good practice. 

In taking decisions in relation to (a) and (c) above, the local authority is accountable 
by providing a clear and transparent framework. 

The Code requires the Council to set a range of Prudential Indicators for the 
forthcoming financial year and at least the following two financial years. The Council 
has set out indicators for the next 10 financial years in line with setting a 10 year 
budget. During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the treasury 
limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s Annual Treasury Management 
Strategy. The actual outturn for the Prudential Indicators for the financial year to date 
is detailed below. The indicators include the Invest to Save scheme however the 
costs of borrowing associated with the scheme will be offset by the income 
generated.  

The 2012/13 Prudential Indicators are shown below and the Council’s performance to 
date against them.  All performance is within the limits. 

 

1. Indicator 1: Capital Expenditure  

This indicator is the estimated capital expenditure for the year based on the 
Capital Programme for that period.  

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 Capital Expenditure  

Indicator 
Actual 

@30.09.12 
Forecast 
Outturn  

Capital Expenditure £144.6m £39.4m £130.9m 

Invest to Save £100.0m £1.9m £3.2m 

Total £244.6m £41.3m £134.1m 

 £96.8m of the budget for the Invest to Save scheme has slipped into 2013/14 
as no new projects are due to start this financial year.  

59



2 

2.  Indicator 2: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 

The CFR measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow money in the 
long term for capital purposes.  Any capital expenditure which has not 
immediately been paid for will increase the CFR. 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 
Capital Financing  
Requirement Indicator 

Actual 
@30.09.12 

Forecast 
Outturn  

CFR b/fwd £268.4m £250.2m £250.2m 

Borrowing £62.2m £13.2m £70.8m 

Invest to Save £100.0m £1.9m £3.2m 

Total CFR C/fwd £433.6m £265.3m £324.2m 

3. Indicator 3: Actuals and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue budget 

The Council must estimate the proportion of the revenue budget, which is 
taken up in financing capital expenditure i.e. the net interest cost and to make 
provision to repay debt. 

The actual and forecast outturn are less than the indicator due to lower PWLB 
interest rates than those quoted in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS). The forecast rates for PWLB include the certainty discount rate of 
0.20 b.p.s which the Council is eligible to receive on new borrowings from 
November 2012.  

4. Indicator 4: Actuals and estimates of the incremental impact of capital 
investment on Council Tax. 

This indicator is intended to show the impact of the Council’s decisions about 
capital investment on the level of Council Tax required to support those 
decisions over the medium term.   

The calculation of this indicator has been done of the basis of the amount of 
the capital programme that was financed from borrowing.  The calculation is 
based on the interest assumption for borrowing that was included in the 
capital financing budget.  The revenue costs are divided by the estimated 
Council Taxbase for the year, and performance is shown in the table overleaf. 

The incremental impact is less than the indicator due to the reduction in the 
CFR budget required to finance the capital programme. The cost of borrowing 
has reduced due to the revision of interest rates downwards from the original 
MTFS, (see indicator 3 for explanation). The impact for the invest to save 
scheme is shown in the figures however the costs of borrowing for this 
scheme will be offset by the income generated in the future.  

 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 Ratio of net financing costs 
to net revenue stream 
  Indicator 

Actual 
@30.09.12 

Forecast 
Outturn  

Core Capital Programme 5.3% 4.7% 4.9% 

Invest to Save 0.6% 0.1% 0.1% 

Financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

5.9% 4.8% 5.0% 

60



3 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 
Incremental impact on capital 

investment decisions on Council Tax Indicator 
Actual 

@30.09.12 
Forecast 
Outturn  

A CFR budget - previous MTFS £17,319k £17,319k £17,319k 

B CFR budget – current MTFS £17,602k £13,304k £14,315k 

C Incremental change (B - A) £283k (£4,015k) (£3,004) 

D Council Tax Base (1,000’s) 56.51 56.51 56.51 

 Total Incremental Impact (C / D) £5.01 (£71.05) (£53.16) 

 Split:    

 Core Capital Programme (£33.93) (£70.57) (£52.06) 

 Invest to Save £38.94 (£0.48) (£1.10) 

5. Indicators 5: Proportion of Net Debt to the CFR 

This indicator shows the proportion of the Council’s external borrowings less 
investments (Net Debt) against the CFR. Please note this indicator has been 
revised from the indicator in the Treasury Management Strategy 2012/13 and 
it now includes the % of the net debt to the CFR as per the revision of the 
Prudential Code.  

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 
Proportion of Net Debt to the 
CFR Indicator 

Actual 
@30.09.12 

Forecast 
Outturn  

CFR £433.6m £265.3m £324.2m 

Net Debt £365.3m £203.9m £248.1m 

% of Net Debt to CFR 84.3% 76.9% 76.5% 

6.  Indicator 6: The Operational Boundary 

The Operational Boundary is a measure of the day to day likely borrowing for 
the Council. The code recognises that circumstances might arise when the 
boundary might be exceeded temporarily, but if this continues for a lengthy 
period then it ought to be investigated. 

 

 

This indicator takes into consideration the capital programme over the life of 
the MTFS and the ability to phase the borrowing over this period.  The 
indicator provides flexibility for the Council to take advantage of favourable 
interest rates in advance of the timing of the actual capital expenditure.  The 
forecast outturn does not represent the actual debt position at year end. 
 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 
Operational Boundary 

Indicator 
Actual 

@30.09.12 
Forecast 
Outturn  

Borrowing b/fwd £215.6m £186.5m £186.5m 

Borrowing - Capital £128.0m £28.2m £70.8m 

Invest to Save £100.0m £1.4m £3.2m 

Total Operational Boundary £443.6m £216.1m £260.5m 

 

61



4 

 

7. Indicator 7: The Authorised Limit 

The Authorised Limit represents the maximum amount the Council may 
borrow at any point in time in the year.  It is set at a level the Council 
considers is “prudent”.   

The indicator takes account of the capital financing requirement estimated at 
the start of each year, plus the expected net borrowing requirement for the 
year.  This makes allowance for the possibility that the optimum time to do all 
borrowing may be early in the year.   

The limits also incorporated margins to allow for exceptional short-term 
movements in the Council’s cash flow, bids from service departments to 
finance efficiencies, changes to the timing of capital payments and 
fluctuations in the realisation of capital receipts.  

The actual borrowing figure is made up of £132.9m of fixed rate long term 
borrowing, £42.0m of temporary fixed rate borrowing and £41.2m of other 
long term liabilities (leases and PFI). 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 
Authorised Limit 

Indicator 
Actual 

@30.09.12 
Forecast 
Outturn  

Borrowing b/fwd £215.6m £186.5m £186.5m 

Borrowing - Capital £223.9m £28.2m £70.8m 

Invest to Save £96.9m £1.4m £3.2m 

Total Authorised Limit £536.4m £216.1m £260.5m 

It is ultra vires to exceed the Authorised Limit so this should be set to avoid 
circumstances in which the Council would need to borrow more money than 
this limit.  However, the Council can revise the limit during the course of the 
year. 

8. Indicator 8: Variable interest rate exposure 

This indicator places an upper limit on the total amount of net borrowing 
(borrowing less investment) which is at variable rates subject to interest rate 
movements.  The intention is to keep the variable rate borrowing below 25% 
of the total gross borrowing (CFR). 

The limit is expressed as the value of total borrowing less investments 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 Upper limit for variable rate 
exposure Indicator 

Actual 
@30.09.12 

Forecast 
Outturn  

Borrowing - Capital £99.6m £0.0m £0.0m 

Invest to Save £24.2m £0.0m £0.0m 

Total upper limit for variable 
rate exposure 

£123.8m £0.0m £0.0m 

The indicator for actual and forecast outturn is zero due to the current 
borrowing strategy of borrowing only at a fixed interest rate in the current 
economic climate of low interest rates. Borrowing at fixed interest rates 
provides budget certainty for the Council.  

62



5 

9. Indicator 9: Fixed Interest rate exposure 

This indicator places an upper limit on the total amount of net borrowing 
which is at fixed rates secured against future interest rate movements.  The 
upper limit allows flexibility in applying a proportion of the investment portfolio 
to finance new capital expenditure.  It also reflects a position where the great 
majority of borrowing is at fixed rate which provides budget certainty with 
100% of borrowing being at fixed rate.  The upper limit for fixed interest rate 
exposure was set to allow for flexibility in applying a proportion of the 
investment portfolio to finance new capital expenditure.  It also reflected a 
position where the great majority of borrowing was at fixed rates to provide 
budget certainty. 

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 Upper limit for fixed rate 
exposure Indicator 

Actual 
@30.09.12 

Forecast 
Outturn  

Borrowing b/fwd £215.6m £142.9m £142.9m 

Borrowing - Capital £224.0m £30.6m £70.8m 

Invest to Save £96.8m £1.4m £3.2m 

Total upper limit for fixed rate 
exposure 

£536.4m £174.9m £216.9m 

10. Indicator 10: Maturity structure of borrowing 

The prudential limits have been set with regard to the maturity structure of the 
Council’s borrowing, and reflected the relatively beneficial long term rates that 
were expected to be available over the next few years. The limits were as 
follows: 

Upper Limit Actual  Actual  

Period Estimate Borrowing 
Sep 12 

Borrowing  
Sep 12 

Under 12 months 40% 34% £59.5m 

1 - 2 years 40% 0% £0.0m 

2 - 5 years 80% 0% £0.0m 

5 - 10 years 80% 1% £1.1m 

over 10 years 100% 65% £114.3m 

Total Borrowing   £174.9m 

11. Indicator 11: Total Investments for periods longer than 364 days 

Authorities are able to invest for longer than 364 days; this can be 
advantageous if higher rates are available.  However it would be unwise to 
lend a disproportionate amount of cash for too long a period particularly as 
the Council must maintain sufficient working capital for its operational needs.   

2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 

Indicator 
Actual 

@30.09.12 
Forecast 
Outturn  

 

£m £m £m 

Principal sums invested >364 days 3.0 0.0 0.0 

This indicator reflects the Council’s current lending policy of keeping 
investments short term for liquidity purposes. Also the Council has run down 
its cash balances over the last three financial years as an alternative to new 
borrowing and does not have the available cash balances to invest for long 
periods. 

63



64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 8 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Seaton, Resources Portfolio Holder 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Lamb, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources 

Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor 

( 452 398 

( 384 557 

 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT: HALF YEAR UPDATE 2012 / 2013 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : John Harrison, Director of Strategic Resources Deadline date : N/A 

Audit Committee are asked that : 
 
1. The Internal Audit Update Report to 30 September 2012 be received and the Committee note 

in particular: 
 

 (i)  Progress made against the plan and the overall performance of the section. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report is submitted to Audit Committee as a routine planned report within the work 

programme of the Committee. It sets out Internal Audit performance and progress with 
regards to the 2012 / 2013 Audit Plan (Audit Committee approval: 26 March 2012). 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Audit Committee on Internal Audit activities and 

performance progress against the Annual Audit 2012 / 2013 as at 30 September 2012.  
 
2.2 The report is for the Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 2.2.4 – To 

consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers of internal 
audit services. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  
 

Is this a Major Policy Item / Statutory 
Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 

65



4. OVERVIEW 
 

4.1 This report outlines the work undertaken by Internal Audit up to 30 September 2012, 
progress against our plan and other issues of interest.  

 

5. ASSURANCE OPINION  
 
5.1 One of four levels of assurance is allocated to each audit review. These assurance levels 

are: FULL; SIGNIFICANT; LIMITED; and NO ASSURANCE. Where concerns have been 
identified resulting in limited or no assurance, the Executive Summaries for these reviews 
will be included in an appendix to this report, once the audit review has been agreed and 
finalised. FOUR reports fall into this category for the period.  

 
5.2 Initial work throughout the first six months has concentrated on higher risk assessed 

activities together with a variety of specific management requests which has temporarily 
skewed the audit outputs. As a result the organisation is showing a higher level of non-
compliance than ordinarily would be expected. This hopefully should be rectified as we 
move into more routine areas. Therefore, the Chief Internal Auditor is unable to provide an 
opinion on the internal control environment at this juncture. 

 
6. AUDIT PLAN 2012 / 2013 
 
6.1 Progress against Plan 
 
6.1.1 Appendix 1 shows the Operational Plan that was agreed by the Audit Committee on 26 

March 2012. It shows the audits that are due to be performed during 2012 / 2013 and the 
status of those audits. It includes audits brought forward from the previous year that have 
been finalised during 2012 / 2013. It also includes audits that were not planned when the 
Annual Audit Plan was approved. Some of these audits have taken a significant amount of 
time due to the nature of the scope involved, for example, special investigations, which has 
significantly reduced the contingency time previously built into the plan for works of this type.  
It does not, however, separately list audit work of more limited scope, such as control 
advice. 

 
6.1.2 To date, four audit projects for 2011 / 2012 have been finalised together with a further 

twenty four for 2012 / 2013. There are also twenty six audit assignments that are in various 
stages of completion. 

 
6.1.3 The original plan was produced to reflect the number of staff available for the year, but it 

included a reserve list of audits that would be undertaken depending on when the vacant 
posts are filled.  Six audits from the reserve list have been commenced as a result of 
business needs and changing priorities, however it is unlikely that all of the reserve audits 
will be undertaken this year unless additional resources are obtained. Progress against the 
main 2012 / 2013 plan is good and it is anticipated that this part of the plan will be achieved.  

 
6.2 Other Performance Matters  
 
6.2.1 An average of 0.36 days sickness per person was lost during the six months to 30 

September 2012, compared to a target of 2.5 days. This figure has continued to improve on 
the figure of 0.67 days per person at this time last year.  

 
6.2.2 Post audit customer satisfaction questionnaires continue to demonstrate that audit reviews 

are meeting the needs of the organisation with an average score of 5.00 (the maximum 
score available is 5). 

 

66



7. CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 This report and the accompanying appendices have been issued to the deputy s.151 Officer 

for consideration.  
 
8. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

8.1 That the Audit Committee is informed of Internal Audit’s progress against the Annual Audit 
Plan and its business plan performance. In addition, that the Audit Committee is made 
aware of any key control issues highlighted by our work since the last progress report. 

 
9.  REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1 The Council is subject to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 and, as such, must make 

provision for Internal Audit in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. It must also 
produce an Annual Governance Statement to be published with the Council’s financial 
accounts. This report and associated papers demonstrate how the audit service is 
progressing against the audit plan and how it will contribute to the Statement. 

 
10.   ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
10.1 The alternative of not providing an Internal Audit service is not an option. 
  
11. IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Corporate Resource Implications 
 
 During the year, Internal Audit makes a number of recommendations. While implementing 

these may have resource implications for the various areas under review, Internal Audit 
discuss and agree recommendations with the Auditee prior to the issue of the final audit 
report. Therefore, it is assumed that their implementation can and will be undertaken either 
with existing resources or with additional resources that they can readily call upon. 

 
11.2 Legal Implications 
 
 The Internal Audit service is undertaken in accordance with the requirements of section 151 

of the Local Government Act and the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2011. There would be a legal implication if an Internal Audit service was not provided for, 
and if mechanisms were not in place to carry out a review of internal control, governance 
and risk management as a basis for the Annual Governance Statement.  

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 

  

• CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006; 

• Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011; and 

• Internal Audit Annual Plan 2012 / 2013. 
 

13. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Progress of Audit Plan 2012 / 2013 (To 30 September 2012) 
 
 

 

67



68

This page is intentionally left blank



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
     

 

  

H
E
A
D
 O
F
 I
N
T
E
R
N
A
L
 A
U
D
IT
 

IN
T
E
R
N
A
L
 A
U
D
IT
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
 

A
S
 A
T
 3
0
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
2
 

 

69



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

 1
. 

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
  

2
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

3
. 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 A
g
a
in
s
t 
A
g
re
e
d
 A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 

4
. 

K
e
y
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 A
ri
s
in
g
 

 

70



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 1
. 

IN
T
R
O
D
U
C
T
IO
N
 

 1
.1
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w
it
h
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 m
a
d
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 a
s
 a
t 
3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
im
s
 t
o
: 

 •
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 
o
r 
o
th
e
rw
is
e
, 
o
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
u
d
it
; 

•
 
A
d
v
is
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
o
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 r
is
k
s
; 

•
 
A
d
v
is
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
, 
s
lip
p
a
g
e
 o
r 
d
e
le
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 o
n
 2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
; 

•
 
T
ra
c
k
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
n
g
 a
c
tu
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
le
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
. 
 

 1
.2
 

T
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
 o
u
r 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
o
p
in
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

is
s
u
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
. 
T
h
is
 o
p
in
io
n
 w
ill
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
(A
G
S
) 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

 1
.3
 

W
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 e
a
c
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
is
 g
iv
e
n
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
o
p
in
io
n
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
ri
te
ri
a
: 

 

A
U
D
IT
 A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s
 

F
u
ll 

T
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
/c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 f
ro
m
 f
o
re
s
e
e
a
b
le
 r
is
k
s
. 

 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

T
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
ll
y
 s
o
u
n
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 /
 o
r 
th
e
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
. 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 e
x
is
t 
to
 m
it
ig
a
te
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
. 

 

L
im
it
e
d
 

T
h
e
re
 
a
re
 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
d
e
s
ig
n
 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
/ 
o
r 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
o
f 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 
c
a
n
 
p
u
t 
th
e
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 
a
t 
ri
s
k
. 

T
h
e
re
fo
re
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 o
n
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 

N
o
 

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 w
e
a
k
 a
n
d
 /
 o
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
ilu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

w
ill
 e
x
p
o
s
e
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
, 
w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 m

a
jo
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
lo
s
s
, 
e
m
b
a
rr
a
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
fa
ilu
re
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 

   

71



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 1
.4
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
 m
a
k
e
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
je
o
p
a
rd
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M

A
D
E
 T
O
 I
M
P
R
O
V
E
 A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 L
E
V
E
L
S
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

E
x
tr
e
m
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
je
o
p
a
rd
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 
Im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 

H
ig
h
 

F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 /
 s
c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 
e
rr
o
r,
 f
ra
u
d
, 
o
r 
lo
s
s
 o
f 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 

 

A
s
 a
 m
a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
a
s
s
e
ts
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 

A
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

L
o
w
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
, 
if
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
, 
w
ill
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r
e
la
ti
v
e
ly
 r
o
b
u
s
t.
 

 
A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

 

 1
.5
 

It
 i
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
’ 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
p
e
ra
te
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 w
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 a
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m
a
n
n
e
r.
  

  2
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
IN
G
 A
N
D
 P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 

 2
.1
 

T
h
e
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
n
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 i
s
 a
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 m
a
d
e
 u
p
 o
f:
 

 

•
 
P
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
S
ta
ff
 (
F
te
) 

 
3
.9
0
 

•
 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 (
s
h
a
re
) 
0
.5
0
 

•
 
V
a
c
a
n
t 
P
o
s
ts
 

 
 

2
.1
0
 

 2
.2
 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ix
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r,
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t:
 

•
 
A
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
s
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 f
ro
m
 m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 o
n
 a
 p
a
rt
-t
im
e
 b
a
s
is
 (
0
.6
 f
te
).
 T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
im
e
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 f
a
c
to
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
 a
t 
th
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
s
o
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 i
n
it
ia
lly
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 g
o
 o
n
 

m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 o
f 
u
p
 t
o
 3
0
 

d
a
y
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
. 

72



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

•
 
T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 c
a
rr
y
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
, 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 2
.1
0
 (
F
T
E
).
 D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
3
 m

o
n
th
s
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r,
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 a
n
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
u
d
it
o
r 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
k
e
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
9
 w
e
e
k
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
T
h
e
y
 f
in
is
h
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
.  

•
 
T
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
s
’ 
in
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 v
a
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
la
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
6
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
2
 a
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
E
ff
o
rt
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts
. 

•
 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 a
u
d
it
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 e
v
id
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
e
re
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
u
d
it
 d
a
y
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d
a
te
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 

in
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
. 
T
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 o
n
 a
u
d
it
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 e
x
a
s
p
e
ra
te
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

m
o
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
ig
ra
ti
n
g
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
C
C
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 
W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
k
n
o
w
n
, 
th
e
 

a
u
d
it
 
te
a
m
 
in
 
it
s
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fo
rm
 
a
re
 
u
n
d
e
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
d
 
in
 
b
e
in
g
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
w
h
o
le
 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
’ 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ils
t 
a
 h
ig
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 /
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
. 

•
 
F
u
rt
h
e
rm
o
re
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 m
o
re
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 b
id
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
g
ra
n
ts
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
u
d
it
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

to
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
. 
 

 2
.3
 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
t 
0
.3
6
 d
a
y
s
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 t
o
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 0
.6
7
 d
a
y
s
 p
e
r 

p
e
rs
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
 

 2
.4
 

P
o
s
t 
a
u
d
it
 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 
th
a
t 
a
u
d
it
 
re
v
ie
w
s
 
a
re
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
th
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
c
o
re
 o
f 
5
.0
0
 /
 5
.0
0
. 
  

 2
.5
 

A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

a
u
d
it
 a
u
to
m
a
te
d
 s
y
s
te
m
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 u
s
e
. 
 T
h
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
o
 V
IS
IO
N
 i
s
 f
o
re
c
a
s
t 
to
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 p
ro
v
id
e
r.
 C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 a
ls
o
 

in
te
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 P
C
C
 w
ill
 a
c
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 h
o
s
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 p
ro
v
id
e
r.
 F
u
rt
h
e
rm
o
re
, 

th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r 
is
 i
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
a
lk
s
 w
it
h
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
th
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
in
to
 t
h
e
 “
p
o
o
le
d
” 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 2
.6
 

T
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
a
n
g
ib
le
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t.
 

     

73



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 3
 

P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 A
G
A
IN
S
T
 A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
U
D
IT
 P
L
A
N
 

  
W
h
e
re
 a
u
d
it
s
 a
re
 “
s
h
a
d
e
d
”,
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
ll 
jo
b
s
 n
o
t 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 a
t 
3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

 

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

C
O
R
E
 S
Y
S
T
E
M
 A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 W

O
R
K
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
N
D
R
 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
a
y
ro
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
a
y
ro
ll 
–
 T
e
a
c
h
e
rs
 P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 

 
T
h
is
 j
o
b
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
ll 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 P
w
C
. 

 

N
/A
 

  
N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

B
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

C
o
re
 /
 F
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
re
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
rs
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 

to
 o
u
r 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
s
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 P
ro
to
c
o
l.

74



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

 

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

A
N
N
U
A
L
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 /
 A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 A
C
T
IV
IT
IE
S
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 F
u
ll 
re
p
o
rt
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
5
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 O
p
in
io
n
 

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 F
u
ll 
re
p
o
rt
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
5
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
  

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 a
n
d
 i
s
 d
u
e
 

to
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
5
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 F
u
ll 
re
p
o
rt
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
5
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

A
n
ti
-f
ra
u
d
 C
u
lt
u
re
: 

 

•
 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F
ra
u
d
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 c
o
m
b
a
t 
fr
a
u
d
. 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

fo
r 
a
ll 
d
a
ta
 s
e
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
d
a
ta
 

m
a
tc
h
in
g
. 

 In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
a
ta
 m
a
tc
h
e
s
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c
re
d
it
o
r 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 
D
a
ta
 

o
u
tp
u
t 
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
le
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 Q
tr
 4
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 
O
n
 g
o
in
g
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
  

 
C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
d
a
te
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

75



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 a
n
d
 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 R
IS
K
S
 

R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 
 

 In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
 a
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
re
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
re
 d
u
e
 a
t 

A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 D
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 -
 F
R
A
M
E
W
O
R
K
I 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

 A
 n
e
w
 c
lie
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
n
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
fr
ie
n
d
 r
o
le
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
: 
W
e
lla
n
d
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

A
u
d
it
 w
o
rk
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

 A
t 
re
v
ie
w
 s
ta
g
e
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
: 
F
u
lb
ri
d
g
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

 
D
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
. 

 A
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
g
e
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

•
 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 –
 P
I 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
/ 
D
a
ta
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 3
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

•
 
S
E
R
C
O
 I
C
T
 /
 M
a
n
o
r 
D
ri
v
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

76



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

E
X
T
E
R
N
A
L
 W

O
R
K
 

V
iv
a
c
it
y
 

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t,
 w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 

s
e
ri
e
s
 o
f 
8
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 

 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

3
 R
e
v
ie
w
s
 r
o
lle
d
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 –
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

1
 a
t 
re
v
ie
w
 s
ta
g
e
 

2
 a
t 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
g
e
 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

 

77



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

O
T
H
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
: 
C
a
rr
y
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
 

 
In
 d
ra
ft
. 
A
w
a
it
in
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 

 
In
 d
ra
ft
. 
A
w
a
it
in
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
u
p
p
lie
r 
a
n
d
 S
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 R
o
ta
ti
o
n
 

In
 d
ra
ft
. 
A
w
a
it
in
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

T
ra
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
fo
llo
w
 u
p
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
u
e
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 

L
im
it
e
d
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

0
 

6
 

     

78



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

O
T
H
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
: 
G
ra
n
t 
C
la
im

 C
e
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 

G
A
F
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 L
e
tt
e
r 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

Z
e
c
o
s
 (
E
U
 G
ra
n
ts
) 
–
 2

n
d
 C
la
im
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 F
ir
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

C
T
IE
 (
E
U
 G
ra
n
ts
) 
–
  
 1

s
t  C
la
im
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 F
ir
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
lle
r 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 G
ra
n
t 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 L
e
tt
e
r 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

D
F
T
 (
L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 L
e
tt
e
r 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

D
F
T
 (
L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
) 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 L
e
tt
e
r 

 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

Z
e
c
o
s
 (
E
U
 G
ra
n
ts
) 
–
 3

rd
 C
la
im
 

 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

C
T
IE
 (
E
U
 G
ra
n
ts
) 
–
  
2
n
d
 C
la
im
 

 
W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
Q
tr
 4
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

N
 /
 A
 

   

79



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

O
T
H
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
: 
F
o
ll
o
w
 U
p
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

D
u
k
e
 o
f 
B
e
d
fo
rd
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 V
a
le
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

80



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

   

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

O
T
H
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
: 
R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 W

o
rk
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 

L
im
it
e
d
 

1
 

7
 

4
 

0
 

1
2
 

C
o
n
fl
ic
t 
o
f 
In
te
re
s
ts
 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
ts
 

In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 R
e
v
ie
w
  

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
e
w
 S
u
p
p
lie
rs
 A
u
d
it
 A
d
v
ic
e
 

 
M
e
m
o
 

N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 

C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
S
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

 
A
t 
re
v
ie
w
 s
ta
g
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 v
ia
 E
-b
a
y
 

 
M
e
m
o
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

G
if
ts
 a
n
d
 H
o
s
p
it
a
lit
y
 f
o
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

 
M
e
m
o
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
s
 

 
3
 M
e
m
o
s
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
o
b
s
o
le
te
 i
te
m
s
 

2
 m
e
m
o
s
 

 
N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

81



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

O
T
H
E
R
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
: 
R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 W

o
rk
 C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 
C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 C
a
m
b
s
 P
o
lic
e
 

fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

 D
e
ta
ils
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 

N
/A
 

N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 
N
 /
 A
 

 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 W

a
te
r 
C
it
y
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
 b
e
lo
w
. 

 

N
/A
 

0
 

3
 

1
 

0
 

4
 

S
u
p
p
lie
r 
R
e
c
o
rd
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 /
 q
u
e
ri
e
s
 

 
3
 m
e
m
o
s
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

W
e
b
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 O
n
e
 T
im
e
 P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 L
o
g
 

 
M
e
m
o
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

82



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

A
D
D
IT
IO
N
A
L
 W

O
R
K
 P
O
S
S
IB
L
E
 W

IT
H
 V
A
C
A
N
C
Y
 F
IL
L
E
D
 

 C
O
R
E
 S
Y
S
T
E
M
 A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 W

O
R
K
 

M
a
in
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 S
y
s
te
m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
ix
e
d
 A
s
s
e
t 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 C
a
rd
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 a
n
d
 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 R
IS
K
S
 

A
S
C
: 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
S
to
re
 

 
In
 d
ra
ft
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

 
R
is
k
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w
it
h
 c
lie
n
t 

 
N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
rb
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 
In
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ta
ff
 L
o
a
n
s
 

 
In
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

E
R
D
M
 

 
In
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
S
C
: 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
S
C
: 
R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
S
C
: 
P
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

83



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

 
A
G
R
E
E
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 A
U
D
IT
 A
C
T
IV
IT
Y
 

S
T
A
T
U
S
 

A
S
S
U
R
A
N
C
E
 

O
P
IN
IO
N
 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 

H
ig
h
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

T
o
ta
l 

A
D
D
IT
IO
N
A
L
 W

O
R
K
 P
O
S
S
IB
L
E
 W

IT
H
 V
A
C
A
N
C
Y
 F
IL
L
E
D
: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 a
n
d
 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 R
IS
K
S
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
a
s
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
y
s
te
m
 /
 R
A
IS
E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ra
c
le
 s
y
s
te
m
 /
 R
1
2
 u
p
g
ra
d
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ri
v
a
te
, 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
in
a
n
c
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

IT
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

IT
 S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
te
rn
e
t 
U
s
a
g
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 A
g
e
n
d
a
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 /
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 
C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
  

 D
e
fe
rr
e
d
 u
n
ti
l 
2
0
1
3
 /
1
4
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
im
in
g
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 d
a
ta
. 

 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
-c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

T
e
le
c
o
m
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

E
X
T
E
R
N
A
L
 W

O
R
K
 

 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
b
a
s
e
 

 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 C
h
ie
f 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
o
r 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

84



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 4
 

K
E
Y
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 A
R
IS
IN
G
 

 4
.1
 

A
u
d
it
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
: 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

  
T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
th
e
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 p
ré
c
is
 o
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S
u
m
m
a
ri
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 N
o
 o
r 
L
im
it
e
d
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
 F
in
a
lis
e
d
 a
u
d
it
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 
  

 
A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 

T
ra
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 

 

S
c
o
p
e
 

A
 T
ra
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 a
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 4
 h
ig
h
 g
ra
d
e
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

It
 i
s
 o
u
r 
n
o
rm
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 f
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
s
 a
ft
e
r 
s
ix
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
is
s
u
e
 b
u
t 
a
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
ly
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 w
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
 

b
y
 C
llr
. 
S
e
a
to
n
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 g
a
in
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ri
ly
. 
 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
it
tl
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
o
llo
w
-u
p
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
e
 k
e
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
s
e
d
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 C
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
 

It
 w
a
s
 d
is
a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 t
o
 n
o
te
 t
h
a
t,
 e
v
e
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
m
in
d
e
r 
b
e
in
g
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 I
n
s
it
e
 s
o
m
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
la
im
s
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
s
e
 c
la
im
s
 a
re
 t
h
e
n
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
h
e
c
k
s
. 
It
 w
a
s
 

e
v
id
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
 k
e
y
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ra
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 P
o
lic
y
 i
s
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
. 
  

 S
y
s
te
m
s
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

B
o
th
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 f
o
llo
w
-u
p
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 e
rr
o
rs
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 p
a
y
ro
ll 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
e
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 c
la
im
s
. 
H
u
m
a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
is
 t
o
 b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

in
 a
n
y
 s
y
s
te
m
, 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
it
ig
a
te
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
s
u
c
h
 r
is
k
s
 a
re
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
  

 N
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 S
e
rc
o
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
 m
o
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
s
ta
n
c
e
 o
n
 n
o
n
-

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
T
h
is
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
o
 a
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

 

 
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 
in
 
re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
th
is
 
a
u
d
it
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
is
 
b
e
in
g
 
m
a
d
e
 
to
 
re
s
o
lv
e
 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ri
ly
. 
A
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
fo
llo
w
 
u
p
 
re
v
ie
w
 
is
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 
to
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

85



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  

A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
  

 

S
c
o
p
e
 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
 w
a
s
 t
o
: 

•
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
e
t-
u
p
, 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

•
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 f
u
ll 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
is
s
u
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 f
u
n
d
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
. 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

•
 

F
ro
m
 o
u
r 
a
u
d
it
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
e
 o
u
t 
o
f 
fo
u
rt
e
e
n
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 A
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
, 
th
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
“M
o
n
th
ly
 B
re
a
c
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
” 
o
n
 o
v
e
rd
u
e
 c
a
re
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
t 

o
f 
a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
5
1
0
2
 c
a
re
 c
a
s
e
s
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
S
C
 t
e
a
m
, 
5
8
 h
a
d
 a
n
 o
v
e
rd
u
e
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
g
re
a
te
r 
th
a
n
 o
n
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

 

•
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 d
ra
ft
 f
o
rm
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 P
o
lic
y
 

a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 o
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

to
 h
e
lp
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
a
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 

 

•
 

A
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
a
s
 n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
re
v
ie
w
 i
n
 6
4
%
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile
s
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 a
u
d
it
 (
n
o
t 
h
e
ld
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
fi
le
 o
r 
th
e
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 R
A
IS
E
 s
y
s
te
m
).
 

 

•
 

A
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
a
c
k
lo
g
 o
f 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
lie
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m
 (
1
6
1
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 
re
c
o
rd
s
 a
s
 a
t 
1
8
/0
5
/1
2
).
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 

re
c
ru
it
 a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 p
o
s
t 
w
ill
 i
n
it
ia
ll
y
 l
a
s
t 
fo
r 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 

c
re
a
te
d
. 

 

•
 

A
u
d
it
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile
s
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 a
n
y
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 

(7
%
) 
o
r 
in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 (
6
4
%
).
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 c
a
re
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 (
2
8
%
) 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 
R
A
IS
E
 
c
a
s
e
 
fi
le
 
s
y
s
te
m
 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 
a
n
 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 
lin
k
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 
th
e
 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 l
ia
is
e
 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
 R
A
IS
E
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
t 
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 c
a
s
e
 f
ile
 n
o
te
s
. 

 

86



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
s
e
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 f
u
lf
ill
e
d
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 c
a
re
 r
e
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
, 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 f
u
lf
ill
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
. 

 R
e
c
e
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 

to
 b
e
 a
n
 h
is
to
ri
c
 i
s
s
u
e
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 s
ig
n
e
d
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
a
lw
a
y
s
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
. 

 A
S
C
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
im
p
ro
v
e
 
th
e
 
w
a
y
 
in
 
w
h
ic
h
 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
c
o
rd
s
 
a
re
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
th
a
t 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
im
e
ly
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
fo
r 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
s
c
a
la
ti
n
g
 i
n
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

c
a
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
/o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
. 

 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 a
u
d
it
, 
a
n
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 b
re
a
c
h
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
lim

it
e
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
c
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 
  

 

  
 

87



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  
A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 

S
c
o
p
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 w
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
e
re
 i
t 
h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 e
x
-e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 w
a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
. 
C
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 w
e
re
 r
a
is
e
d
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 u
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
 

u
n
fa
ir
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 b
e
in
g
 g
a
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
a
s
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 i
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 g
a
in
e
d
 b
y
 u
n
fa
ir
 m

e
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

It
 w
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
h
a
t:
 

 

•
 

U
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 g
a
in
e
d
 t
o
 P
C
C
’s
 w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 a
rc
h
iv
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 b
y
 a
n
 e
x
-e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
; 

•
 

T
h
e
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
r 
o
f 
th
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 r
e
s
ig
n
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
ig
h
ts
 h
a
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

re
m
o
v
e
d
; 

•
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 v
ie
w
e
d
 o
r 
d
o
w
n
lo
a
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 h
is
to
ri
c
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
rt
in
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
; 

•
 

T
h
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 
p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 
te
n
d
e
r 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
s
 
b
e
in
g
 
v
ie
w
e
d
 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 
th
e
 
te
n
d
e
r 
c
lo
s
u
re
 
d
a
te
 
a
n
d
 
it
 
w
a
s
 
th
e
re
fo
re
 
n
o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
te
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
d
 o
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 o
n
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 w
h
o
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 b
y
 h
a
v
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
rc
h
iv
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
fi
n
d
in
g
s
 w
e
re
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 w
h
o
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm
a
lly
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

w
a
s
 a
n
 a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 o
f 
g
u
ilt
, 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 f
o
rm
a
l 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
’s
 w
it
h
d
ra
w
a
l 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
. 

 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 i
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

fi
rs
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 P
C
C
’s
 p
o
rt
a
l.
 W

h
ils
t 
e
x
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 r
ig
h
ts
 a
re
 n
o
rm
a
lly
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 P
C
C
’s
 m

a
in
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 

b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 i
n
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
rs
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 s
ta
ff
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 w
id
e
s
p
re
a
d
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 

to
 a
v
o
id
 f
u
tu
re
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 t
y
p
e
. 
  

 

  
 

88



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
2
 /
 2
0
1
3
: 
P
ro
g
re
s
s
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

  
A
u
d
it
 T
it
le
 

W
a
te
r 
C
it
y
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

 

S
c
o
p
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 w
a
s
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
v
e
n
ts
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 W

a
te
r 
F
e
s
ti
v
a
l.
 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 

T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
io
n
 o
f 
£
1
5
,0
0
0
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
u
n
d
ry
 c
o
s
ts
, 
a
n
d
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
o
rn
e
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 e
v
e
n
ts
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
n
iq
u
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
–
 t
h
e
re
 w
a
s
 n
o
 o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
r 
–
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 s
ti
p
u
la
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 t
h
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 /
 q
u
o
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
. 
W
h
ile
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 k
n
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
, 

th
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
u
m
e
ro
u
s
 d
e
la
y
s
 i
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
is
 e
x
e
m
p
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
ls
o
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
lie
r.
 

T
h
is
 t
h
e
n
 h
in
d
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

C
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 

P
o
o
r 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
in
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
h
ile
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
th
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
ra
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 o
f 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 e
tc
. 

 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
o
r 
n
o
t 
d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
. 

 

  
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is
 a
u
d
it
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ri
ly
. 

 

89



90

This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 9 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr David Seaton, Portfolio Holder for Resources 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Executive Director Strategic Resources 

Steven Pilsworth, Head of Strategic Finance 

Tel. 452520 

Tel. 384564 

 
 
USE OF CONSULTANTS – UPDATE REPORT 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

FROM : Executive Director Strategic Resources Deadline date : N/A 

   
1. That Audit Committee consider the update report on the use of Consultants 

  
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

1.1 This report is submitted to Audit Committee following the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee 
review into Peterborough City Council’s use of consultants, the subsequent endorsement of their 
recommendations by Cabinet, and the agreement of Audit Committee to undertake an on-going 
monitoring role. 

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

2.1 Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee recommended that the on-going monitoring role at 
 Member level is undertaken by Audit Committee. Audit Committee considered their approach to 
 this role at their meeting of 26 March 2012. This report is in line with the approach agreed, and 
 is in accordance with the Committees’ Terms of Reference:  
 

• 2.2.13 To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or a Director, or any 
Council body; and 

• 2.2.17 To consider the Council's arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 

 
3. TIMESCALE  

Is this a Major Policy Item / 
Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

N/A 

 
4. REVIEW OF THE USE OF CONSULTANTS 

4.1 In March 2010, the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee requested a review into 
Peterborough City Council’s use of consultants.  A cross-party review group was established to 
undertake this work on behalf of the Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee. 

 
4.2 The scope of the review focused on the following objectives:  
 

• To examine the cost of consultants and whether that provides value for money; 

• To review the processes for engaging and monitoring the work of consultants; 

• To look at the relationship between consultants and staff of the Council; and 

• To examine the likely future use of consultants by the Council. 
 
 

91



4.3 The report from the Consultancy Review Group was issued in March 2011 and contained thirty 
three recommendations: twenty seven of these recommendations were endorsed by Cabinet in 
June 2011. In broad terms, the recommendations related to policy and process changes. It was 
agreed that many of recommendations regarding good practice should be incorporated into a 
policy guiding the use of consultants and interims. 

 
4.4 Progress in implementing the recommendations, including a draft of the policy, was considered 

by Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee at their meeting on 8 November 2011. The 
Committee made a number of comments regarding the draft policy, and requested that an 
updated draft was brought back to their meeting of 6 March 2012 for consideration. Following this 
the Policy was approved by Cabinet on 26 March. 

 
4.5 The policy has been rolled out across the Council, and reference included in all guidance on 

procuring consultants. The recent training on contract regulations has included update training on 
the policy. 

 
4.6 Scrutiny also recommended that on-going monitoring of the use of consultants should fall to Audit 

Committee. Audit Committee considered an update report on 26 March, including this role. The 
following was agreed: 

 
The Committee agreed the adoption of their role in monitoring the arrangements for the 
use of consultants at Peterborough City Council; 
 
It was agreed that the Head of Corporate Services would: 
 

• Produce a six monthly report to Audit Committee on the use of consultants by 
Peterborough City Council; and 

• Would include detail on which departments had used consultants. 
 
4.7 It was also requested that information relating to the types of projects were included. Members 
 also suggested that a template on reporting the use of consultants should be developed without 
 the need to conduct a full review each time to Audit Committee. The remainder of this report 
 provides the updates as requested. 
 
4.8 Use of consultants 
 
 The definition of consultancy is based upon standard procurement classification. As such it 

covers a wide range of companies and services. Expenditure is included here if the company 
meets the standard classification, irrespective of exactly what services have been provided. 

 
4.9 The spend for the last three years for both consultancy and interim spend is shown below, 

outlining a decline over those three years, and a continuing decline in this year. 
 

 Consultancy 
£m 

Interim 
£m 

Total 
£m 

2009-10 7.1 1.4 8.5 

2010-11 5.3 1.1 6.4 

2011-12 4.7 0.7 5.4 

2012-13 
(6 month period to end 
September 2012) 

1.4 0.5 1.9 

 
4.10 It should be noted that the exact pattern of spend depends entirely on what projects are 
 underway in the council. 

 
4.11 A list of companies used in the last year is included in appendix 1, indicating the breadth of these 
 companies and services that are included in the standard classification and in the analysis in this 
 report. 
 

92



5. CONSULTATION 

5.1 Audit Committee considered options for how they wish to monitor use of consultants in the future 
at their meeting of 26 March 2012. 

 

6 ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

6.1  That Audit Committee consider the update report on the use of consultants. 
 

7 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 The recommendations are in line with the recommendations of Scrutiny, and the view of Audit 
Committee in undertaking this role. 

 

8 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

8.1 Audit Committee considered options for how they wish to monitor use of consultants in the future 
at their meeting of 26 March 2012. 

 

9 IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Where appropriate, the policy outlines implications for areas such as Legal, Human Resources, 
Procurement and Finance. 

 
9.2 This report does not have implications for specific wards.  
 

10 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985) 

   

• Consultancy Review Report, March 2011; 

• Report to Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee, 8th November 2011; 

• Report to Sustainable Growth Scrutiny Committee, 6th March 2012; and 

• Reports to Cabinet and Audit Committee 26th March 2012. 
 
11 APPENDICES 

• Appendix 1 - list of companies used in the last year; and 

• Appendix 2 - Spend by department and example projects. 
 
 
 
 

 

93



 
 

Appendix 1 
List of companies used in the last year 
 

A G L Consulting 

AMTEC Consulting Plc 

Andrew Belson Arboricultural Con. 

Anglia Support Partnership 

Ann Goldsmith Ltd 

Athene Communications 

Barker Storey Matthews 

Blue Blanket Ltd 

Brown, Kamni 

Building Research Establish. Ltd 

Capita Business Services Ltd 

CB Richard Ellis 

CEN Services Ltd 

Centre for Sustainable Engineering 

Civica UK Limited 

Copping, Mr Fernley 

Don Latham Associates 

Donoyou, Mr Richard 

Drivers Jonas Deloitte 

ES4S Ltd 

Experian Ltd 

G V A Grimley 

Gilgar, Mr Eamonn 

Governetz Ltd 

Grey Laughton Associates 

Halcrow Group Ltd 

Headstuff Ltd 

Hyder Consulting (UK) Ltd 

Innovative Solutions 

Jane Held Consulting Ltd 

Jardine Lloyd Thompson 

Jones, Miss Linda 

Northgate Information Solutions 

Ntrinsic Consulting Europe Ltd 

Peter Brett Associates 

Randstad CPE 

Reilly, Mr Gerald 

Richardson 

Rider Levett Bucknall UK Ltd 

Robert J Davis Associates 

Sanham Agricultural Planning Ltd 

Terrier Management Services 

The Carbon Trust 

94



Appendix 2 
 
 
Spend by department and example projects 
 
This table breaks down the consultancy spend for 2011-12 outlined in section 4.7 by department, and 
provides examples of projects undertaken in those departments. 
 
 

Department spend Examples Projects undertaken 

Chief Executives £580,773 • Growth projects including: 
o Station quarter 
o Southbank, including community 

stadium 
o Bretton 

• Running eco-innovation centre 

• Electoral review 

• Support for Greater Peterborough 
Partnership 

 

Children’s Services £667,638 • Secondary schools development technical 
advice (Nene Park, Stanground, City of 
Peterborough and Ormiston Bushfield) 

• Procurement support 

• Improvement Board 

• Home Education work 
 

Adult Social Care £263,759 • Adult social care transition programme 
 

Operations £223,385 • Street lighting energy efficiency 

• Census project 

• Planning advice – POIS 

• Surface water management plan 
 

Strategic Resources £2,915,960 • Waste 2020 programme, including: 
o final elements of transfer of city 

services to Enterprise 
o Energy from Waste project 

• Manor Drive project – establishment of 
Strategic Partnership with Serco 

• Central Funding Unit (income generating) 

• Bedford Borough Council project (income 
generating) 

• Head of Business Transformation 

• ICT support 
 

Total £4,651,515  

 

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No.10 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Seaton, Resources Portfolio Holder 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Lamb, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor ( 384 557 

 
 

FEEDBACK REPORT 
 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 
 This is a standard report to Audit Committee which forms part of its agreed work 

programme. 
 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 
This standard report provides feedback on items considered or questions asked at 
previous meetings of the Committee. It also provides an update on any specific matters 
which are of interest to the Committee or where Committee have asked to be kept informed 
of progress. 

 
 
3. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Feedback Responses 
 
  
 
 
  

97



 

APPENDIX 1 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: RECORD OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR: MAY 2012 - APRIL 2013 
 
DATE ISSUE 

RAISED 
AGENDA ITEM / ACTION ARISING OFFICER 

RESPONSIBLE 
ACTION TAKEN SIGN OFF 

DATE 

24 September Agenda Item 4: Audit of Statement of Accounts 
 
As part of PwC’s external audit plan for 2012/2013, PwC would 
discuss with officers and the Audit Committee, an appropriate scope 
of work to review the governance arrangements with respect to 
elements of the allocation of expenditure within the Council’s budget 
policy framework. 
 

Steven Pilsworth 
PwC 

This will be included in the Plan for next year. 
 

 

24 September Agenda Item 5: Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
 

• Provide clearer explanations within the report to 
Committee, over the different types of RIPA investigations 
used; and 

• Request a briefing note from Operations regarding the 
current monitoring underway across the City to identify 
potential test purchasing and fly tipping offences. 

 
 
 

Ben Stevenson Separate briefing notes have been emailed to Members on 19 
October 2012. 

 

 

9
8



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM No.11 

5 NOVEMBER 2012 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Seaton, Resources Portfolio Holder 

Committee Member(s) responsible: Councillor Lamb, Chair of Audit Committee 

Contact Officer(s): Steve Crabtree, Chief Internal Auditor ( 384 557 

 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2012 / 2013 
 
 
1.         ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

This is a standard report to Audit Committee which forms part of its agreed work 
programme. This standard report provides details of the proposed Work Programme for the 
Municipal Year 2012 / 2013 together any training needs identified. 

 
2.        UPDATE 

 
Work Programme 

 
The Work Programme (Appendix 1) is based on previous years meeting dates / agendas. 
The programme will be refreshed in consultation with senior officers and the Committee 
membership throughout the year.  

 
Training 

 
 An overview of the works channelled through the Audit Committee will be provided 

alongside this agenda. 
 
 Further training will be provided subject to the needs of the committee, either before the 

meeting or at separate sessions. 
 
3. APPENDICES 
 
            Appendix 1 - WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2012 / 2013 
 

 

99



APPENDIX 1 
WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2012 / 2013 
 

Date Work Programme Key Officer 

Agenda items: 
Information Governance: Data Incident Policy 

 
Louise Tyers 

Audit Committee Handbook Steve Crabtree 

7 June 2012 

 
Training: 

Overview of the Final Accounts process 
 

 
Steven Pilsworth 

Agenda Items: 
Fraud: Annual Report 2011 / 2012 

 
Ben Stevenson 

Internal Audit: Review of Effectiveness Steve Crabtree 

Internal Audit: Annual Report 2011 / 2012 Steve Crabtree 

Draft Annual Governance Statement Steve Crabtree 

Budget Monitoring Report Outturn 2011 / 2012 Steven Pilsworth 

Statement of Accounts 2011 / 2012 Steven Pilsworth 

25 June 2012 

 
Training: 

None identified 
 

 

3 Sept 2012 MEETING CANCELLED  
 

Agenda Items: 
Audit of Statement of Accounts and Report to Those 
Charged with Governance 

 
Steven Pilsworth / PwC 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA): Annual 
Report and Progress to 30 June 2012 

Ben Stevenson 

Progress / Update Report  

24 Sept 2012 

 
Training: 

None identified 
 

 

Agenda Items: 
Strategic Risk Management (deferred from 3 Sept 2012) 

 
Kevin Dawson 

RIPA: Progress Report to 30 September 2012 Ben Stevenson 

Member Code of Conduct Kim Sawyer 

Treasury Management Update Steven Pilsworth 

Internal Audit: Mid-Year Progress Report Steve Crabtree 

Use of Consultants: Progress Report  Steven Pilsworth 

5 Nov 2012 

 
Training: 

To be determined 
 

 

Agenda Items: 
Risk Management: Strategic Risks 

 
Kevin Dawson 

External Audit: Annual Audit Letter PwC 

External Audit: Report to Management PwC 

External Audit: Grant Claims Annual Certification PwC 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee Steve Crabtree 

Feedback Report  

4 Feb 2013 

 
Training: 

To be determined 
 

 

 

100



 
Date Work Programme Key Officer 

Agenda Items: 
RIPA: Progress Report to 31 December 2012 

 
Ben Stevenson 

Internal Audit: Strategy and Audit Plan 2013 / 2014 Steve Crabtree 

External Audit: Audit Plan PwC 

Draft Annual Audit Committee Report Steve Crabtree 

Feedback Report  

25 Mar 2013 

 
Training: 

To be determined 
 

 

 
 
Each meeting may be supplemented by additional reports deemed appropriate for the Committee, and in 
accordance with the Terms of Reference. This could relate to: 
 

• Specific work requests for Internal Audit or External Audit; 

• Changes made to Financial Regulations or Contract Regulations; or 

• Other governance or legislation which impacts on the work of the Committee. 
 
 
The Work Programme will be refreshed at each meeting. 
 

101



102

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 September 2012
	4 Risk Management Strategy, Business Continuity Strategy and Update on Risk Management: Strategic Risks
	PCC Risk Management Policy v1 0 item 4 app 1
	PCC BC policyv1 0 item 4 app 2

	5 RIPA: Progress Report to 30 September 2012 and an update on RIPA policy changes
	6 Member Code of Conduct
	Cllr Judy Fox dispensation application item 6 app1
	Cllr Todd dispensation application item 6 app1
	Appendix 2 - Hearings procedure item 6
	Appendix 3 -IndependentPersonRecruitmentPack item 6

	7 Treasury Management: Update
	Prudential Indicators 12-13 Sep-12 0 2  APP 1

	8 Internal Audit: Mid Year Progress Report
	2012 11 AC - HoIA Update App 1  item 8

	9 Use of Consultants
	10 Feedback Report
	11 Work Programme 2012 / 2013

